
Agenda    Board of Supervisors   March 7, 2022 

Russell County Page 1 

RUSSELL COUNTY 
BOARD OF SUPERVISOR’S MEETING 

AGENDA – MARCH 7, 2022 

BOS Board Room   Regular Meeting       6:00 PM 

Russell County Governmental Center 
Lebanon, Virginia 24266 

CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL – Clerk of the Board 

INVOCATION   

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

ACKNOWLEGEMENT 

1. Noah Ball – Honaker Police Officer

PRESENTATION 

1. Debbie Musick – Tourism, Cleveland Community Center, “Rabbit Ridge Pea
Pickers” Park & Stage Signage

2. CPPDC – Debbie Milton – Dante Sewer Contract

3. K-9 Search and Rescue – Matthew Sutherland - Equipment Donation

4. County Administrator – 2021 County Election Redistricting Plan



Agenda    Board of Supervisors   March 7, 2022 

Russell County Page 2 

PUBLIC HEARING 

1. Ordinance Amending the Ordinance of Russell County Elections – District and
Precinct Boundaries

NEW BUSINESS 

1. Approval of Minutes.  Consider approval of the minutes of the
following meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors….……………A-1 

a. Unapproved minutes of February 7, 2022

2. Approval of Expenditures. Consider approval of expenditures presented
for payment……………………………………………………………………………...A-2 

3. Committee Appointments for Board Consideration……………………………...A-3 

SVCC Local College Board 

Greg Brown (Resigned)              4 Year-Term        March 7, 2022 

RC Public Service Authority (PSA) 

Vacant                                           4 Year-Term    June 24, 2023 

CITIZEN’S COMMENT PERIOD (Limited to 3 Minutes) 

CONSTITUTIONAL OFFICER REPORTS AND REQUESTS 

COUNTY ATTORNEY REPORTS AND REQUESTS………………………………………..B-1 

1. RC Noise Ordinance

2. Ordinance Amending the Ordinance of Russell County Elections – District
and Precinct Boundaries

3. CPRWMA 2022 Manpower and User Agreement

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REPORTS AND REQUESTS 

REPORTS 

1. VDOT Dante Depot Facility Renovation Advertisement…………………………. C-1 



Agenda    Board of Supervisors   March 7, 2022 

Russell County Page 3 

2. VDOT Land Use Permit for CSX Road Closure to Repair Railroad Crossing
on Rte. 626 on March 28, 29, 30, and 31, 2022……………………………………...C-2  

REQUESTS 

3. Finney Disposal Site Lease.…..………………….…………………………………....C-3 

4. Accounts Payable Position Advertisement…………………………………………C-4 

5. BOS Discretionary Fund………………………………………………………………..C-5 

BOARD DISCUSSIONS & REMINDERS 

ADJOURNMENT 

COUNTY AGENCY / BOARD REPORTS: 

• Treasurer’s Report ………………………………………………………………………D 
• RC IDA …………………………………………………………………………………….E 
• RC PSA …………………………………………………………………………………... F 
• RC Tourism……………………………………………………………………………….G 
• RC Planning Commission ……………………………………………………………..H 
• Conference Center……………………………………………………………………….I 
• RC Transportation & Safety…………………………………………………………....J 
• RC Cannery Reports…………………………………………………………………….K 
• RC Building Inspector…………………………………………………………………..L 
• RC Litter Report………………………………………………………………………….M  



Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

Board of Supervisors  Information Item  
137 Highland Drive     Presenters - Various 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

 Meeting: 3/7/22      6:00 PM 

Acknowlegement

1. Noah Ball – Honaker Police Officer

Staff Recommendation: 

Presentation – Informational Only. 

Suggested Motion: 

Board Discretion.  

ATTACHMENTS: 
• Various







Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

Board of Supervisors  Information Item  
137 Highland Drive     Presenters - Various 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

 Meeting: 3/7/22      6:00 PM 

Presentations

1. Debbie Musick – Tourism, Cleveland Community Center, 
“Rabbit Ridge Pea Pickers” Park & Stage Signage

2. CPPDC – Debbie Milton – Dante Sewer Contract

3. K-9 Search and Rescue Equipment Donation

4. County Administrator – 2021 County Election Redistricting Plan

Staff Recommendation: 

Presentation – Informational Only. 

Suggested Motion: 

Board Discretion.  

ATTACHMENTS: 

• Various



Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

   Board of Supervisors        Action Item 
137 Highland Drive    Presenters - Chairperson 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

  Meeting: 3/7/22     6:00 PM 

Public Hearing 

1. Ordinance Amending the Ordinance of Russell County Elections – District and
Precinct Boundaries

Staff Recommendation: 

Board Discretion. 

Suggested Motion: 

Board Discretion.  

ATTACHMENTS: 
• Various



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ORDINANCE OF RUSSELL COUNTY – 
ELECTIONS – DISTRICT AND PRECINCT BOUNDARIES  

RUSSELL COUNTY, VIRGINIA 
 

 PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the Board of Supervisors of Russell County, 
Virginia, will conduct a public hearing on March 7, 2022, at 6:00 PM, or as soon 
thereafter as may be practical, at the Russell County Government Center, located at 
137 Highland Drive, Lebanon, Virginia 24266, and hereby gives its intent to adopt An 
Ordinance Amending the Ordinance of Russell County – Election – District and Precinct 
Boundaries. 
 

The County of Russell, Virginia, is obligated to redistrict following the §24.2-304.1 
of the Code of Virginia that requires local governments to use the most recent decennial 
population figures for such county, city, or town for the purposes of redistricting and 
reapportioning representation, the 2020 United States Decennial Census adjusted by 
the Virginia Division of Legislative Services; and Russell County has formulated a 
redistricting plan that would be in the best interests of the citizens of Russell County. 
 
 All persons wishing to comment on the Ordinance are hereby invited to attend 
and state their views thereon.  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if 
special assistance is needed to participate in a meeting of the Board of Supervisors, 
please contact the County Administrator’s Office by telephone at (276) 889-8000, by 
facsimile at (276) 889-8011, or by email at lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us.  The 
Ordinance can also be reviewed on the County’s Website at Russell County, VA | Official 
Website (russellcountyva.us).  A notification of five (5) working days before the meeting will 
enable the County Administrator’s Office to make reasonable arrangements to ensure 
accessibility to the meeting. 
 
 A complete copy of the Ordinance is posted on the Russell County Circuit Court’s 
bulletin board on the second floor of the Russell County Courthouse, located at 53 East 
Main Street, Lebanon, Virginia 24266.  A complete copy of the Ordinance is also on file 
in the office of the County Administrator, located at 137 Highland Drive, Lebanon,  
Virginia 24266. 
 
By Order of the Board of Supervisors of Russell County, Virginia 
By: Lonzo Lester, Russell County Administrator 

https://www.russellcountyva.us/
https://www.russellcountyva.us/


At a regular meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors held in the County Administration 
Building, Lebanon, Virginia, on the ___ day of March 2022, on a motion of _____________, and 
seconded by ____________________, which passed by a ______ vote, the following Ordinance was 
passed: 

ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ORDINANCE OF RUSSELL COUNTY- ELECTION 
 \DISTRICT AND PRECINCT BOUNDARIES 

RUSSELL COUNTY, VIRGINIA 

CHAPTER 1. 

ARTICLE 1. 

WHEREAS, Russell County is obligated to redistrict following the §24.2-304.1 of 

the Code of Virginia that requires local governments to use the most recent decennial 

population figures for such county, city, or town for the purposes of redistricting and 

reapportioning representation, the 2020 United States Decennial Census adjusted by 

the Virginia Division of Legislative Services; and  

WHEREAS, Russell County has formulated a redistricting plan that would be in 

the best interests of the citizens of Russell County; and 

WHEREAS, it is hereby ordained as follows: 

Section 24.2-100.  Applicability of Title – The provisions of this ordinance shall 

apply to all elections held in this County except as otherwise provided by general law. 

Section 24.2-101.  Magisterial District Lines – The Magisterial District Lines of 

Russell County as established by Order of the Circuit Court of Russell County, Virginia 

as set forth in Deed Book 204 Page 306 in E.W. Callenbach, et als. (petitioners) v 

County of Russell, Virginia (defendant) shall remain the same. 

Section 24.2-102.  Representation of Governing Body. – Representation on 

the governing body of Russell County shall be by election districts, from each of which 



 

2 

 

one (1) member of the Russell County Board of Supervisors shall be elected and one 

(1) at-large member elected from the entire county.  The combined membership of the 

Russell County Board of Supervisors shall be seven (7). 

CHAPTER 2. 

ARTICLE 1. 

Establishment of Election Districts; Naming of Districts; Description of Election Districts 

 Section 24.2-200. – Pursuant to the authority contained in the Code of Virginia 

(1950), as amended, section 15.2-1211 and 24.2-300 et. seq., the election districts of 

Russell County, Virginia, are hereby created and established as set forth in this 

ordinance. 

 Section 24.2-201 – The named election districts with populations set forth are as 

follows: 

A. Election District No. 1 – 2020, population 4,282. 

B. Election District No. 2 – 2020, population 4,195. 

C. Election District No. 3 – 2020, population 4,321. 

D. Election District No. 4 – 2020, population 4,289. 

E. Election District No. 5 – 2020, population 4,400. 

F. Election District No. 6 – 2020, population 4,294. 

 

ARTICLE 2. 

Boundary Description of Election District No. 1-2020 

 Section 24.2-202 – The Boundary of Election District No. 1-2020. 



 

3 

 

 BEGINNING at a point which is the southwestern corner of Russell County, a 

common corner to Russell, Scott and Washington Counties; thence in a northwesterly 

direction with the Russell – Scott County Line to its intersection with Virginia Secondary 

Route 610 (Sunny Point Rd.); thence in a easterly direction to its intersection with 

Virginia Secondary Route 609 (W. Bearwallow Rd.); thence in a northerly direction with 

Virginia Secondary Route 609 to its intersection with Virginia Secondary Route 685 

(Vanderpool Dr.); thence in a northeasterly direction with the meanders of Virginia 

Secondary Route 685 to its intersection with Virginia Secondary Route 611 (Ervintown 

Rd.); thence in a northeasterly direction with the meanders of Virginia Secondary Route 

611 to its intersection with American Electric Company’s Clinch River – Hill 138 KV 

power line; thence running with said power line in a northeasterly direction to its 

intersection with U.S. Highway 58; thence in a northerly direction with U.S. Highway 58 

to its intersection with Virginia Secondary Route 683 (Memorial Dr.); thence in a 

easterly direction with the meanders of Virginia Secondary Route 683 to its intersection 

with Virginia Secondary Route 669 (Seven Springs Rd); thence in a southeasterly 

direction with Virginia Secondary Route 669 to its intersection with American Electric 

Company’s Clinch River – Hill  138 KV power line; thence in a northeasterly direction 

with said power line to its intersection with Virginia Secondary Route 667 (Century Farm 

Rd); thence in a southeasterly direction with the meanders of Virginia Secondary Route 

667 to its intersection with the Castlewood – Lebanon Magisterial District Line as 

established by the above-referenced Order of the Circuit Court of Russell County; 

thence in an easterly direction with the meanders of the Castlewood – Lebanon 

Magisterial District Line to its intersection with American Electric Company’s Clinch 



 

4 

 

River – Hill 138 KV power line; thence in a southeasterly direction with said power line 

to the top of Clinch Mountain; thence in a southwesterly direction with the Russell – 

Washington County Line to the BEGINNING. 

 

ARTICLE 3. 

Boundary Description of Election District No. 2-2020 

 Section 24.2-203 – The Boundary of Election District No. 2-2020. 

BEGINNING at a point where Virginia Secondary Route 610 (Sunny Point Rd.) 

intersects with the Russell – Scott County Line, the northwest corner of the South 

Castlewood Precinct; thence in a northwesterly direction with the Russell – Scott County 

Line to a common point in the Russell – Scott – Wise County Line; thence in a 

northeasterly direction with the meanders of the Russell – Wise County Line to a 

common corner of Russell – Dickenson – Wise Counties Line; thence in a northeasterly 

direction with the meanders of the Russell – Dickenson County Line to a point north of 

the intersection of Virginia Secondary Route 616 (Cheney Creek Rd.) and Virginia 

Secondary Route 657 (Hazel Mountain Rd.) in the Russell – Dickenson County Line; 

thence in a southeasterly direction to the intersection of Virginia Secondary Route 616 

(Cheney Creek Rd.); thence in a southeasterly direction with the meanders of Virginia 

Secondary Route 616 to its intersection with Virginia Secondary Route 615 (Gravel Lick 

Rd.); thence in a westerly direction with Virginia Secondary Route 615 to its intersection 

with Virginia Secondary Route 700 (Eagles Nest Rd.); thence in a southerly direction 

with Virginia Secondary Route 700 to its intersection with Virginia Secondary Route 628 

(Heralds Valley Rd.); thence in a westerly direction with Virginia Secondary Route 628 



 

5 

 

to its intersection with Virginia Secondary Route 614 (Carterton Rd.); thence in a 

southerly direction with Virginia Secondary Route 614 to its intersection with Virginia 

Secondary Route 640 (Middle Valley Rd.); thence in a northeasterly direction with 

Virginia Secondary Route 640 to its intersection with Virginia Secondary Route 645 

(Jessees Mill Rd.); thence in a southerly direction with Virginia Secondary Route 645 to 

its intersection with Virginia Secondary Route 640 (Long Hollow Rd.); thence in a 

southeasterly direction with Virginia Secondary Route 640 to the intersection with the 

Castlewood – Lebanon Magisterial District Line as established by the above-referenced 

Order of the Circuit Court of Russell County, thence in a southwesterly direction with the 

meanders of the Castlewood – Lebanon Magisterial District Line to the intersection of 

Virginia Secondary Route 667 (Century Farm Rd.); thence in a northerly direction with 

the meanders of Virginia Secondary Route 667 to its intersection with American Electric 

Company’s Clinch River - Hill 138 KV power line; thence running with said power line in 

a westerly direction to the intersection of Virginia Secondary Route 669 (Seven Springs 

Rd.); thence in a northwesterly direction to the intersection of Virginia Secondary Route 

683 (Memorial Drive); thence in a northerly direction with the meanders of Virginia 

Secondary Route 683 to its intersection with U.S. Highway 58; thence in a southerly 

direction to its intersection with American Electric Company’s Clinch River - Hill 138 KV 

power line; thence in a westerly direction with said power line to its intersection with 

Virginia Secondary Route 611 (Ervintown Rd); thence in a southwesterly direction with 

the meanders of Virginia Secondary Route 611 to its intersection with Virginia 

Secondary Route 685 (Vanderpool Dr.); thence in a westerly direction to intersection 

with Virginia Secondary Route 609 (W Bearwallow Rd); thence in a southerly direction 



 

6 

 

to its intersection with Virginia Secondary Route 610 (Sunny Point Rd.); thence in a 

westerly direction to its intersection with the Russell – Scott County Line to the point of 

BEGINNING.  

ARTICLE 4. 

Boundary Description of Election District No. 3-2020. 

 Section 24.2-204 – The Boundary of Election District No. 3-2020. 

BEGINNING at a point which is a common corner of Russell – Dickenson – 

Buchanan Counties; thence running in a southwesterly direction with the Russell – 

Dickenson County Line to a point north of the intersection of Virginia Secondary Route 

616 (Cheney Creek Rd.) and Virginia Secondary Route 657 (Hazel Mountain Rd.) in the 

Russell – Dickenson County Line; thence in a southeasterly direction to intersection of 

Virginia Secondary Route 616 (Cheney Creek Rd.); thence in a southeasterly direction 

with the meanders of Virginia Secondary Route 616 to its intersection with Virginia 

Secondary Route 615 (Gravel Lick Rd.); thence in a westerly direction with Virginia 

Secondary Route 615 to its intersection with Virginia Secondary Route 700 (Eagles 

Nest Rd.); thence in a southerly direction with Virginia Secondary Route 700 to the 

intersection with Virginia Secondary Route 628 (Heralds Valley Rd.); thence in a 

westerly direction with Virginia Secondary Route 628 to its intersection with Virginia 

Secondary Route 614 (Carterton Rd.); thence in a southerly direction with Virginia 

Secondary Route 614 to its intersection with Virginia Secondary Route 640 (Middle 

Valley Rd.); thence in a northeasterly direction with Virginia Secondary Route 640 to its 

intersection with Virginia Secondary Route 645 (Jessees Mill Rd.); thence in a southerly 

direction with Virginia Secondary Route 645 to its intersection with Virginia Secondary 



 

7 

 

Route 640 (Long Hollow Rd.); thence in a southeasterly direction with Virginia 

Secondary Route 640 to the intersection with the Castlewood – Lebanon Magisterial 

District Line; thence in a westerly direction to Virginia Secondary Route 640 to its 

intersection with abandoned Virginia Secondary Route 672; thence in a northwesterly 

direction in a straight line to a point southwest of the intersection of Virginia Secondary 

Route 882 (Lost Valley Rd), Virginia Secondary Route 640, and north of Gray Cemetery 

(as shown on the U.S. Geological Survey map “ Lebanon Quadrangle”); thence in an 

easterly direction in a straight line to the intersection with Virginia Highway 82 

(Cleveland Rd.); thence in a southerly direction with the meanders of Virginia Highway 

82 (Cleveland Rd.); to its intersection with Virginia Secondary Route 640 (River 

Mountain Rd); thence in a northwesterly direction with the meanders of Virginia 

Secondary Route 640 (River Mountain Rd.) to its intersection with American Electric 

Company’s Carbo – Elk Garden – Saltville No. 2 138 KV power line; thence in a 

southeasterly direction with said power line to its intersection with Big Cedar Creek; 

thence in a northerly direction approximately 900 feet following the meanders of Big 

Cedar Creek to a point; thence in an easterly direction to the crest of the Doubles and 

River Mountain (as shown on the U.S. Geological Survey map “ Elk Garden 

Quadrangle”); thence in an easterly direction, with the meanders of the crest of the 

Doubles and River Mountain to a point known as Big Rock (as shown on U.S. 

Geological Survey Map “Elk Garden Quadrangle”); thence in an easterly direction to its 

intersection with Virginia Highway 80 (Redbud Hwy.); thence in a southerly direction 

with Virginia Highway 80 to its intersection with American Electric Company’s Baker – 

Broadford 765 KV power line; thence in a southeasterly direction with said power line to 



 

8 

 

its intersection with Mill Branch (as shown on the U.S. Geological Survey Map “ Elk 

Garden Quadrangle”); thence in a northeasterly direction in a straight line to the 

intersection with Virginia Secondary Route 640 (Clifton Farm Rd); thence in a 

northwesterly direction with Virginia Secondary Route 640 to its intersection with 

Virginia Secondary Route 630 (Kents Ridge Rd); thence in a northerly direction with 

Virginia Secondary Route 630 (Kents Ridge Rd) to its intersection with the Clinch River; 

thence in a westerly direction with the meanders of the Clinch River to its intersection 

with Lewis Creek; thence in a northerly direction with Lewis Creek to its intersection with 

the Town of Honaker Corporation limits; thence in a westerly direction with the Town of 

Honaker Corporation limits to its intersection with Virginia Secondary Route 646 (Tunnel 

Rd.); thence in a northeasterly direction with the Town of Honaker Corporation Limits to 

its intersection with Virginia Highway 80 (Redbud Hwy.); thence in a westerly direction 

with the meanders of Town of Honaker Corporation Limits to its intersection with 

Virginia Highway 67 (Swords Creek Rd); thence in a northeasterly direction with Virginia 

Highway 67 to its intersection with Virginia Secondary Route 637 (Wysor Valley Rd); 

thence in a northwest direction with Virginia Secondary Route 637 to its intersection 

with Virginia Secondary Route 780; thence in a northwesterly direction, a straight line, to 

a point on the crest of Stone Cove Ridge, elevation 2,796 ft. (as shown on U.S. 

Geological Survey Map “Honaker Quadrangle”), a common point in the New Garden, 

Drill and Swords Creek Precinct Lines; thence in a southwesterly direction a straight 

line, which touches the northern terminus of Virginia Secondary Route 715 (Stone 

Mountain Rd) to a point where it intersects with Virginia Secondary Route 624 (Drill Rd) 

and Laurel Branch; thence in a northwesterly direction with the meanders of Laurel 



 

9 

 

Branch to the headwaters of Laurel Branch near Jackson Cemetery (as shown on U.S. 

Geological Survey Map “ Big A Mountain Quadrangle”); thence in a northerly direction to 

its intersection with the Russell – Buchanan County Line, a common corner of the New 

Garden - Drill Precincts; thence in a southwesterly direction to the point of BEGINNING. 

ARTICLE 5. 

Boundary Description of Election District No 4-2020. 

 Section 24.2-205 – The Boundary of Election District No. 4-2020. 

BEGINNING at a point in the Buchanan – Russell County Line just north of 

Laurel Branch; thence leaving the Buchanan – Russell County Line and running in a 

southeasterly direction to the headwaters of Laurel Branch; thence in a southeasterly 

direction with the meanders of Laurels Branch to a point where it intersects with Virginia 

Secondary Route 624 (Drill Rd.); thence leaving Laurel Branch and running in a straight 

line in a northeasterly direction (which line touches the northern terminus of Virginia 

Secondary Route 715) to the headwaters of Stone Branch; thence in a southeasterly 

direction to the intersection of Virginia Secondary Route 780 (Call Valley Rd.) and 

Virginia Secondary Route 637; thence with Virginia Secondary Route 637 in a 

southeasterly direction to the intersection of Virginia Highway 67 (Swords Creek Rd.); 

thence in a southwesterly direction with the meanders of Virginia Highway 67 to its 

intersection with the Town of Honaker Corporation Limits; thence in a northwestern 

direction with the meanders of the Town of Honaker Corporation Limits to its 

intersection with Virginia Highway 80 (Redbud Hwy.); thence in a southwesterly 

direction with the meanders of the Town of Honaker Corporation Limits to its 

intersection with Virginia Secondary Route 646 (Tunnel Rd.); thence in a southeasterly 



 

10 

 

direction with the meanders of the Town of Honaker Corporation Limits to its 

intersection with Lewis Creek; thence in a southerly direction with the meanders of 

Lewis Creek to its intersection with the Clinch River; thence in an easterly direction with 

the meanders of the Clinch River to its intersection with Little River; thence in a easterly 

direction with the meanders of Little River to it intersection with the Russell – Tazewell 

County Line; thence in a northwesterly direction with the Russell – Tazwell County Line 

to its intersection with the corner of Russell – Tazewell – Buchanan County Line; thence 

in a southwestern direction with the Russell – Buchanan line to the point of 

BEGINNING. 

ARTICLE 6. 

Boundary Description of Election District No. 5-2020. 

 Section 24.2-206 – The Boundary of Election District No. 5-2020. 

BEGINNING at a point where Virginia Secondary Route 657 (Green Valley Rd.) 

intersects with Virginia Secondary Route 1063 (Rolling Meadows Rd.); thence in a 

southerly direction with Virginia Secondary Route 1063 and beyond its termination in a 

straight line to the Russell – Washington County Line at the top of Clinch Mountain; 

thence with the meanders of the Russell – Washington County Line in a southwesterly 

direction to its intersection with American Electric Company’s Clinch River – Saltville 

No. 2 line 138KV power line; thence in a northwesterly direction with said power line to 

its intersection with the Castlewood – Lebanon Magisterial District line, as established 

by the above-referenced Order of the Circuit Court of Russell County; thence in a 

northeasterly direction with the meanders of the Castlewood – Lebanon Magisterial 

District Line to its intersection with Virginia Secondary Route 640 (Long Hollow Rd.); 



 

11 

 

thence in a westerly direction to Virginia Secondary Route 640 to its intersection with 

abandoned Virginia Secondary Route 672; thence in a northwesternly direction in a 

straight line to a point southwest of the intersection of Virginia Secondary Route 882 

(Lost Valley Rd), Virginia Secondary Route 640, and north of Gray Cemetery (as shown 

on the U.S. Geological Survey map “ Lebanon Quadrangle”); thence in an easterly 

direction in a straight line to its intersection with Virginia Highway 82 (Cleveland Rd.); 

thence in a southerly direction with the meanders of Virginia Highway 82 (Cleveland 

Rd.) to its intersection with Virginia Secondary Route 640 (River Mountain Rd.); thence 

in a northwesterly direction with the meanders of Virginia Secondary Route 640 (River 

Mountain Rd.) to its intersection with American Electric Company’s Clinch River – 

Saltville 138 KV power line; thence in a southeasterly direction with said power line to its 

intersection with Big Cedar Creek; thence in a southerly direction with the meanders of 

Big Cedar Creek to its intersection with East Main St.; thence westerly direction to its 

intersection with Virginia Secondary Route 658 (Big Cedar Creek Rd); thence in a 

southerly direction with Virginia Secondary Route 658 to its intersection with Elliott Dr; 

thence in a westerly direction with the meanders of Elliott Dr. to its intersection with 

Regional Park Rd.; thence in a northerly direction to its intersection with U.S. Highway 

19; thence in a westerly direction with U.S. Highway 19 to a point at the start of the 

Lebanon Second Southbound Exit; thence in a straight line to the intersection of Ketron 

Ave. and Career Tech Dr.; thence following the meanders of Career Tech Dr. to the 

intersection of Pittston Rd.; thence in a southerly direction to its intersection with 

Regional Park Rd.; thence in southeasterly direction, in a straight line, to the Town of 

Lebanon Corporation Limits; thence in a westerly direction with the Town of Lebanon 



 

12 

 

Corporation Limits to its intersection with Virginia Secondary Route 654 (Pittston Rd.); 

thence in a southerly direction, leaving the Town of Lebanon Corporation Limits, to its 

intersection with Virginia Secondary Route 664, (Stone Bruise Rd.); thence in a westerly 

direction with the meanders of Virginia Secondary Route 659 to its intersection with 

Virginia Secondary Route 660 (Coal Tipple Hollow); thence in a southerly direction with 

Virginia Secondary Route 660 to its intersection with Virginia Secondary Route 657 

(Green Valley Rd.); thence in a northeasterly direction with Virginia Secondary Route 

657 to its intersection with Virginia Secondary Route 1063 the point of BEGINNING. 

ARTICLE 7. 

Boundary Description of Election District No. 6-2020. 

 Section 24.2-207 – The Boundary of Election District No. 6-2020. 

BEGINNING at a point where the Little River intersects with the Russell – 

Tazewell County Line; thence in a southwesterly direction with the meanders of the 

Little River, the Lebanon – New Garden Magisterial District Line, as referenced in the 

above-mentioned Order of the Circuit Court of Russell County, to its intersection with 

Virginia Secondary Route 636 (Kents Ridge Rd.); thence with the meanders of Virginia 

Secondary Route 636 in a southerly direction to its intersection with Virginia Secondary 

Route 640 (Clifton Farm Rd.); thence in a southwest direction in a straight line to a point 

where American Power Company’s Baker – Broadford 765 KV power line intersects 

with Mill Branch (as shown on the U.S. Geological Survey Map “Elk Garden 

Quadrangle”); thence in a northwesterly direction to its intersection with Virginia 

Highway 80 (Redbud Hwy.); thence in a southerly direction with the meanders of 

Virginia Highway 80 to the crest of The Doubles and River Mountain (as shown on the 



 

13 

 

U.S. Geological Survey Map “Elk Garden Quadrangle”); thence in a westerly direction, 

with the meanders of the top of The Doubles and River Mountain to a point known as 

Big Rock (as shown on U.S. Geological Survey Map “Elk Garden Quadrangle”); thence 

in a westerly direction, with the meanders of the top of The Doubles and River Mountain 

to a point in Big Cedar Creek, a common corner of East Lebanon – West Lebanon – 

Daughterty precincts; thence in a southerly direction with the meanders of Big Cedar 

Creek to its intersection with East Main St; thence in a westerly direction to its 

intersection with Virginia Secondary Route 658 (Big Cedar Creek Rd); thence in a 

southerly direction with Virginia Secondary Route 658 (Big Cedar Creek Rd) to its 

intersection with Elliott Dr.; thence in a westerly direction with the meanders of Elliott Dr. 

to its intersection with Regional Park Rd.; thence in a northerly direction to its 

intersection with U.S. Highway 19; thence in a westerly direction with U.S. Highway 19 

to a point at the start of the Lebanon Second Exit - Southbound; thence in a straight line 

to the intersection of Ketron Ave. and Career Tech Dr.; thence following the meanders 

of Career Tech Dr. to the intersection of Pittston Rd.; thence in an southerly direction to 

its intersection with Regional Park Rd.; thence in a southeasterly direction in a straight 

line, to the Town of Lebanon Corporation Limits; thence in a westerly direction with the 

Town of Lebanon Corporation Limits to its intersection with Virginia Secondary Route 

654 (Pittston Rd.); thence in a southerly direction, leaving the Town of Lebanon 

Corporation Limits, to its intersection with Virginia Secondary Route 664, (Stone Bruise 

Rd.); thence in a westerly direction with the meanders of Virginia Secondary Route 659 

to its intersection with Virginia Secondary Route 660 (Coal Tipple Hollow); thence in a 

southerly direction with Virginia Secondary Route 660 to its intersection with Virginia 



 

14 

 

Secondary Route 657 (Green Valley Road); thence in a northeasterly direction with 

Virginia Secondary Route 657 to its intersection with Virginia Secondary Route 1063 

(Rolling Meadows Rd.); thence in a southerly direction with Virginia Secondary Route 

1063 and beyond its termination in a straight line to the Russell – Washington County 

Line on top of Clinch Mountain; thence with the Russell – Washington County Line in a 

northeasterly direction to a corner of Russell - Washington – Smyth Counties; thence in 

a northeasterly direction with the Russell – Smyth County Line to a corner of Russell – 

Smyth – Tazewell Counties; thence in a northwesterly direction with the Russell – 

Tazewell County Line to the point of BEGINNING. 

CHAPTER 3. 

ARTICLE 1. 

Naming of Voter Precincts; Designation of Precinct Polling Places and  

Geographical Boundary Descriptions of Precincts 

Section 24.2-300.  The named precinct for each election district and the 

designated polling place for each precinct shall be as follows: 

A. Election District No. 1-2020: 

1. Moccasin Precinct, No. 101-2020 whose polling place shall be 10244 Moccasin 

Valley Road at the Oak Grove Community Center. 

2. Copper Creek, No. 102-2020 whose polling place shall be 23894 U.S. Highway 

58 at the Copper Creek Elementary School. 

3. South Castlewood, No. 103-2020 whose polling place shall be 304 Blue Devil 

Circle at the Castlewood High School.  The actual polling place shall not be in the 



 

15 

 

same room or adjacent to the room used by voting by the registered voters of the 

North Castlewood, No. 201-2020 precinct.   

B. Election District No. 2-2020. 

1. North Castlewood, No. 201-2020 whose polling place shall be at 304 Blue Devil 

Circle the Castlewood High School.  The actual polling place shall not be in the 

same room or adjacent to the room used for voting by the registered voters of 

South Castlewood, No. 103-2020 precinct. 

2. Dante, No. 202-2020 whose polling place shall be at the 142 Lower Bearwallow 

Road at the Dante Community Center. 

C. Election District No. 3-2020. 

1. Cooks Mill, No. 301-2020 whose polling place shall be at 1374 Finney Road at 

the Finney Community Center. 

2. Daugherty, No. 302-2020 whose polling place shall be at 327 River Mountain 

Road at the Glade Hollow Ball Park. 

3. New Garden, No. 303-2020 whose polling place shall be at 50 Honaker 

Elementary Road at the Honaker Elementary School. 

4. Cleveland, No. 304-2020 whose polling place shall be at 6 Minor Street at the 

Cleveland Community Center. 

D. Election District 4-2020. 

1. Drill, No. 401-2020 whose polling place shall be at 6746 Drill Road at the Drill 

Community Center. 

2. Swords Creek, No. 402-2020 whose polling place shall be at 3867 Swords Creek 

Road at the Swords Creek Elementary School. 



 

16 

 

3. Honaker, No. 403-2020 whose polling place shall be 1795 Thompson Creek Rd. 

at the Honaker High School. 

E. Election District 5-2020. 

1. West Lebanon, No. 501-2020 whose polling place shall be at 56 George Ben 

Whited Drive at the Lebanon Middle School. 

F. Election District 6-2020 

1. East Lebanon, No. 601-2020 whose polling place shall be at 304 Career Tech 

Road at the Russell County Career and Technologies Center. 

2. Elk Garden, No. 602-2020 whose polling place shall be at 22294 U.S. Highway 

19 at the Belfast-Rosedale Volunteer Fire Department Auxiliary Building. 

ARTICLE 2. 

Boundary Description Voter Precincts in Election District 1-2020. 

 Section 24.2-301 – The geographical boundary of the Moccasin Precinct, No. 

101-2020 is as follows: 

 BEGINNING at a point which is the southwestern corner of Russell County, a 

common corner to Russell, Scott and Washington Counties; thence in a northwesterly 

direction with the boundary of Russell and Scott County to the crest of Moccasin Ridge; 

thence following the meanders of the crest of Moccasin Ridge to its intersection with 

Virginia Secondary Route 614 (Cross Roads) and Sinking Creek; thence following the 

meanders of Sinking Creek to its intersection with American Electric Company’s Clinch 

River – Saltville No. 2 line 138KV; thence in a straight line, a southeasterly direction to 

the Russell – Washington County Line on top of Clinch Mountain; thence in a 



17 

southwesterly direction with the meanders of the Russell – Washington County Line to 

the point of BEGINNING. 

Section 24.2-302 – The geographical boundary of the Copper Creek Precinct, 

No. 102-2020 is as follows: 

BEGINNING at a point in the crest of Moccasin Ridge on the Russell – Scott 

County Line, the northwest corner of the Moccasin Creek Precinct; thence following the 

meanders of the crest of Moccasin Ridge to its intersection with Virginia Secondary 

Route 614 (Cross Roads) and Sinking Creek; thence following the meanders of Sinking 

Creek to its intersection with American Electric Company’s Clinch River – Saltville No. 2 

line, 138KV; thence running with said power line in a northwesterly direction to its 

intersection with the Castlewood – Lebanon Magisterial District Line as established by 

the above-referenced Order of the Circuit Court of Russell County; thence with the 

Castlewood – Lebanon Magisterial District Line in a southwesterly line to its intersection 

with U.S. Highway 58; thence with U.S. Highway 58 in a southeastern direction to its 

intersection with Virginia Secondary Route 609 (High Point Rd.); thence in a westerly 

direction with the meanders of Virginia Secondary Route 609 to its intersection with 

Virginia Secondary Route 611(Grassy Creek Rd.); thence in a southwesterly direction 

with Virginia Secondary Route 611 to its intersection with Virginia Highway 71 (South 

71); thence in a southwesterly direction with the meanders of Virginia Highway 71 to its 

intersection with the Russell – Scott County Line; thence in a southeasterly direction 

with the Russell – Scott County Line to the point of BEGINNING. 

Section 24.2-303. – The geographical boundary of the South Castlewood 

Precinct, No. 103-2020 is as follows: 



 

18 

 

BEGINNING at a point in the Russell – Scott County Line and the intersection of 

Virginia Secondary Route 610 (Sunny Point Rd); the southwest corner of the North 

Castlewood Precinct; thence in a southeasterly direction with the Russell – Scott County 

Line to the intersection of Virginia Highway 71 (South 71); thence in an easterly 

direction to its intersection with Virginia Secondary Route 611 (Grassy Creek Rd.); 

thence in a northeasterly direction to its intersection with Virginia Secondary Route 609 

(High Point Rd.); thence in an easterly direction with the meanders of  Virginia 

Secondary Route 609 to its intersection with U.S. Highway 58; thence in a northerly 

direction with U.S. Highway 58 to its intersection with the Castlewood – Lebanon 

Magisterial District Line as established by the above-referenced Order of the Circuit 

Court of Russell County; thence in a westerly direction with the Castlewood – Lebanon 

Magisterial District Line to its intersection with Virginia Secondary Route 667 (Century 

Farm Road); thence in a northerly direction with the meanders of Virginia Secondary 

Route 667 to its intersection with American Electric Company’s Clinch River -- Hill 138 

KV power line; thence running with said power line in a westerly direction to it intersects 

with Virginia Secondary Route 669 (Seven Springs Rd.); thence in a northwesterly 

direction to the intersection of Virginia Secondary Route 683 (Memorial Drive); thence in 

a northwesterly direction with the meanders of Virginia Secondary Route 683 to its 

intersection with U.S. Highway 58; thence in a southerly direction to its intersection with 

American Electric Company’s Clinch River -- Hill 138 KV power line; thence running with 

said power line in a westerly direction to it intersects with Virginia Secondary Route 611 

(Ervintown Rd); thence in a southwesterly direction with the meanders of Virginia 

Secondary Route 611 to its intersection with Virginia Secondary Route 685 (Vanderpool 



 

19 

 

Dr); thence in a westerly direction to intersection with Virginia Secondary Route 609 (W. 

Bearwallow Rd); thence in a southerly direction to its intersection with Virginia 

Secondary Route 610 (Sunny Point Rd); thence in a westerly direction to its intersection 

with the Russell – Scott County Line to the point of BEGINNING. 

ARTICLE 3. 

Boundary Description Voter Precincts in Election District 2-2020. 

 Section 24.2-304. – The geographical boundary of the North Castlewood 

Precinct, No. 201-2020 is as follows: 

BEGINNING at a point where Virginia Secondary Route 610 (Sunny Point Rd) 

intersects with Russell – Scott County Line, the northwest corner of the South 

Castlewood Precinct; thence in a northwesterly direction with the Russell – Scott County 

Line to a common point in the Russell – Scott – Wise County Line; thence in a 

northeasterly direction with the Russell – Wise County Line to the intersection of Virginia 

Highway 63 (Dante Rd.); thence in an easterly direction with the meanders of Virginia 

Highway 63 to its intersection with Virginia Secondary Route 870 (Spout Springs Rd.); 

thence in a southeasterly direction on Virginia Secondary Route 870 to its intersection 

with Virginia Secondary Route 615 (Gravel Lick Rd.); thence in an easterly direction to 

its intersection with Virginia Secondary Route 700 (Eagle Nest Rd.); thence in a 

southerly direction with Virginia Secondary Route 700 to the intersection with Virginia 

Secondary Route 628 (Heralds Valley Rd.); thence in a westerly direction with Virginia 

Secondary Route 628 to its intersection with Virginia Secondary Route 614 (Carterton 

Rd.); thence in a southerly direction with Virginia Secondary Route 614 to its 



20 

intersection with Virginia Secondary Route 640 (Middle Valley Rd.); thence in a 

northeasterly direction with Virginia Secondary Route 640 to its intersection with Virginia 

Secondary Route 645 (Jessees Mill Rd.); thence in a southerly direction with Virginia 

Secondary Route 645 to its intersection with Virginia Secondary Route 640 (Long 

Hollow Rd.); thence in a southeasterly direction with Virginia Secondary Route 640 to 

the intersection with the Castlewood – Lebanon Magisterial District Line to the 

Intersection of Virginia Secondary Route 667 (Century Farm Rd.); thence in a northerly 

direction with the meanders of Virginia Secondary Route 667 to its intersection with 

American Electric company’s Clinch River -- Hill 138 KV power line; thence running with 

said power line in a westerly direction to the intersection of Virginia Secondary Route 

669 (Seven Springs Rd.); thence in a Northwesterly direction to the intersection of 

Virginia Secondary Route 683 (Memorial Drive); thence in a northerly direction with the 

meanders of Virginia Secondary Route 683 to its intersection with U.S. Highway 58; 

thence in a southerly direction to its intersection with American Electric Company’s 

Clinch River – Hill 138 KV power line; thence in a westerly direction with said power line 

to its intersection with Virginia Secondary Route 611 (Ervintown Rd); thence in a 

southwesterly direction with the meanders of Virginia Secondary Route 611 to its 

intersection with Virginia Secondary Route 685 (Vanderpool Dr); thence in a westerly 

direction to intersection with Virginia Secondary Route 609 (W Bearwallow Rd); thence 

in a southerly direction to its intersection with Virginia Secondary Route 610 (Sunny 

Point Rd); thence in a westerly direction to it intersects with the Russell – Scott County 

Line to the point of BEGINNING. 



 

21 

 

24.2-305. – The geographical boundary of the Dante Precinct, No. 202-2020 is 

as follows: 

 BEGINNING at a point at a point in the Russell – Wise County Line and Virginia 

Highway 64 intersection (Dante Rd.), thence in an easterly direction with Virginia 

Highway 63 (Dante Rd.) to its intersection with Virginia Secondary Route Route 870 

(Spout Springs Rd.); thence in a southeasterly direction on Virginia Secondary Route 

870 to its intersection with Virginia Secondary Route 615 (Gravel Lick Rd.); thence in an 

easterly direction to its intersection with Virginia Secondary Route 616 (Cheney Creek 

Rd.); thence in a northwestern direction with Virginia Secondary Route 616 to a point in 

the Russell – Dickenson County Line; thence in a westerly direction with the Russell – 

Dickenson County Line to a point, a common corner of Russell – Dickenson – Wise 

County Line; thence in a southeasterly direction with the Russell – Wise County Line to 

the point of BEGINNING. 

Article 4. 

Boundary Description Voter Precincts in Election District 3-2020. 

Section 24.2-306. – The geographical boundary of the Cooks Mill Precinct, No. 

301-2020 is as follows: 

 BEGINNING at a point a corner to Russell – Dickenson – Buchanan County Line 

and the Castlewood – new Garden magisterial District Line, as established by the above 

referenced Order of the Circuit Court of Russell County; thence in a southeastern 

direction with the Castlewood – New Garden Magisterial District Line to a point near 

Nash’s Ford which is common point in the Castlewood – New Garden – Lebanon 

Magisterial District Lines; thence following the meanders of the New Garden – Lebanon 



22 

magisterial District Line (being Clinch River) to an unnamed branch approximately 4,000 

feet from the intersection of Puckett’s Branch and Clinch River; thence in a northerly 

direction with the meanders of said unnamed branch to the terminus of Virginia 

Secondary Route Route 692 (Belcher Rd); thence in a northerly direction with Virginia 

Secondary Route Route 692 to its intersection with Virginia Secondary Route 645 (New 

Garden Rd) and the headwaters of Stillhouse Branch; thence in a northwesterly 

direction with the meanders of Stillhouse Branch to its intersection with Thompson 

Creek and Sykes Branch; thence in a northerly direction with the meanders of Sykes 

Branch (left-hand fork) to the headwaters thereof; thence in a straight line in a northerly 

direction to Bradley Gap, a point in the Russell – Buchanan County Line; thence in a 

westerly direction with the Russell – Buchanan County Line to the point of BEGINNING. 

Section 24.2-307. – The geographical boundary of the Daugherty Precinct, No. 

302-2020 is as follows

BEGINNING at a point which is a common corner of the Castlewood – New 

Garden – Lebanon Magisterial District Line, as established in the above-referenced 

Order of the Circuit Court of Russell County; thence in a southwesterly direction with the 

Castlewood – Lebanon Magisterial District line to its intersection with Virginia Highway 

640 (Long Hollow Rd); thence in a westerly direction to Virginia Secondary Route 640 to 

its intersection of abandoned 672; thence in a northwesterly direction in a straight line to 

a point southwesterly of the intersection of Virginia Secondary Route 882 (Lost Valley 

Rd), Virginia Secondary Route 640, and north of Gray Cemetery (as shown on the U.S. 

Geological Survey map “ Lebanon Quadrangle”); thence in a easterly direction in a 

straight line to its intersection with Virginia Highway 82 (Cleveland Rd); thence in a 



23 

southerly direction with the meanders of Virginia Highway 82 (Cleveland Rd) to its 

intersection with Virginia Secondary Route 640 (River Mountain Rd); thence in a 

northwesterly direction with the meanders of Virginia Secondary Route 640 to its 

intersects with American Electric Company’s power 138 KV power line; thence in a 

southeasterly direction with said power line to its intersects with Big Cedar Creek; 

thence in a northerly direction approximately 900 feet following the meanders of Big 

Cedar Creek to a point; thence in a easterly direction to the crest of the Doubles and 

River Mountain (as shown on the US Geological Survey map “Elk Garden quadrangle”); 

thence in a easterly direction, with the meanders of the crest of The Doubles and River 

Mountain to the headwaters of Puckett’s Branch, the southwest corner to New Garden 

Precinct; thence in a northwesterly direction with the meanders of Puckett’s Branch to a 

point in the New Garden – Lebanon Magisterial District Line, as established by the 

above-referenced order of the Circuit Court of Russell County; thence in a northwesterly 

direction with the New Garden – Lebanon Magisterial Line (the meanders of the Clinch 

River) to the point of BEGINNING. 

Section 24.2-308. – The geographical boundary of the New Garden Precinct, 

No. 303-2020 is as follows: 

BEGINNING at a point, the northeastern corner of Cooks Mill Precinct, in the 

Russell – Buchanan county Line at Bradley Gap (as shown on U.S. Geological Survey 

Map “Big A Mountain Quadrangle”); thence in a northeasterly direction with the 

meanders of the Russell - Buchanan County Line to a point north of Laurel Branch, near 

Jackson Cemetery (as shown on U.S. Geological Survey Map “Big A Mountain 

Quadrangle”); thence in a southeasterly direction with the meanders of Laurel Branch to 



 

24 

 

a point where it intersects with Virginia Secondary Route 624 (Drill Rd); thence leaving 

Laurel Branch in a northeasterly direction, a straight line, which touches the northern 

terminus of Virginia Secondary Route 715 (Stone Branch Rd) to a point on the crest of 

Stone cove Ridge, elevation 2,796 ft. (as shown on U.S. Geological Survey map 

“Honaker Quadrangle”); thence in a southeasterly direction, a straight line, to the 

intersection of Virginia Secondary Route 637 (Wysor Valley Rd) and Virginia Secondary 

Route 780 (Call Valley Rd), north of Gardner; thence in a southeasterly direction with 

Virginia Secondary Route 637 to its intersection with Virginia Highway 67(Swords Creek 

Rd); thence in a northeasterly direction with the meanders of Virginia Highway 67 to its 

intersection with Virginia Town of Honaker Corporation Limits; thence in a northwestern 

direction with the meanders of Town of Honaker Corporation Limits to its intersection 

with Virginia Highway 80 (Redbud Hwy); thence in a southwestern direction with the 

meanders of Town of Honaker Corporation Limits to its intersection with Virginia 

Secondary Route 646 (Tunnel Rd); thence in a southeastern direction with the 

meanders of the Town of Honaker Corporation Limits to its intersection with Lewis 

Creek; thence in a southerly direction to its intersects with the Clinch River; thence in a 

easterly direction with the meander of the Clinch River to its intersection with Virginia 

Secondary Route 640 (Clifton Farm Rd); thence in a southwesterly direction, a straight 

line, to it intersects with American Electric Power Company’s Barker – Broadford 765 

KV power line; thence in a southwesterly direction with said power line to its intersection 

with Virginia Highway 80 (Redbud Hwy); thence in a southerly direction with the 

meanders of Virginia Highway 80 to the crest of The Doubles and River Mountain (as 

shown on the U.S. Geological Survey Map “Elk Garden Quadrangle”); thence in a 



 

25 

 

westerly direction, with the meanders of the crest of The Doubles and River Mountain to 

the headwaters of Puckett’s Branch, the southeast corner to Daugherty Precinct; thence 

in a northwesterly direction with the meanders of Puckett’s Branch to a point in the New 

Garden – Lebanon Magisterial District Line, as established by the above-referenced 

order of the Circuit Court of Russell County; thence in a northerly direction with the New 

Garden – Lebanon Magisterial Line (the meanders of the Clinch River) a distance of 

approximately 4,000 feet to a named branch a common corner of Cooks Mill and 

Daugherty Precincts; thence with a common line of Honaker and Cooks  Mill Precincts 

in a northerly direction with the meanders of said unnamed branch to the terminus of 

Virginia Secondary Route 692 (Belcher Rd); thence in a northerly direction with Virginia 

Secondary Route 692 to its intersection with Virginia Secondary Route 645 (New 

Garden Rd) and the headwaters of Stillhouse Branch; thence in a northwesterly 

direction with the meanders of Stillhouse Branch to its intersection with Thompson 

Creek and Sykes Branch; thence in a northerly direction with the meanders of Sykes 

branch (left-hand fork) to the headwaters thereof; thence in a straight line in a northerly 

direction to the point of BEGINNING. 

Section 24.2-309. – The geographical boundary of the Cleveland Precinct, No. 

304-2020 is as follows: 

BEGINNING at a point the intersection of Virginia Secondary Route 616 in the 

Russell – Dickenson County Line; thence in a northeasterly direction with the Russell - 

Dickenson County Line to a point where the Castlewood – New Garden Magisterial 

District, as established in the above-referenced Order of the Circuit Court of Russell 

County; thence in a southeasterly direction with the Castlewood – New Garden 



 

26 

 

Magisterial District line to a point near Nash’s Ford which is a common corner to the 

Castlewood – New Garden – Lebanon Magisterial District line to a point near Nash’s 

Ford which is a common corner to the Castlewood – New Garden – Lebanon 

Magisterial District Line, as established in the above-referenced order of the Circuit 

Court of Russell County; thence in a southwesterly direction with the Castlewood – 

Lebanon magisterial District Line to its intersection with Virginia Highway 640 (Long 

Hollow Rd); thence in a westerly direction with the meanders of Virginia Secondary 

Route 640 (Long Hollow Rd) to the intersection of Virginia Secondary Route 645 

(Jessees Mill Rd); thence in a northerly direction to its intersection with Virginia 

Secondary Route 614 (Middle Valley Rd); thence in a northwesterly direction with 

Virginia Secondary Route Route 614 to the intersection of Virginia Secondary Route 

628 (Hearlds Valley Rd); thence in a northerly direction with Virginia Secondary Route 

628 to its intersection with Virginia Secondary Route 700 (Eagles Nest Rd); thence in a 

northwesterly direction with Virginia Secondary Route 700 to its intersection with 

Virginia Secondary Route 615 (Gravel Lick Rd); thence in a westerly direction to its 

intersection with Virginia Secondary Route 616 (Cheney Creek Rd); thence with Virginia 

Secondary Route 616 to the point of BEGINNING. 

ARTICLE 5. 

Boundary Description Voter Precincts in Election District 4-2020 

 Section 24.2-310. – The geographical boundary of the Drill Precinct No. 401-

2020 is as follows: 

 BEGINNING at a point in the Russell – Buchanan County Line, a common corner 

with the Honaker Precinct, to a point north of Laurel Branch, near Jackson Cemetery 



 

27 

 

(as shown on U.S. Geological Survey Map “Big A Mountain Quadrangle”); thence in a 

southeasterly direction with the meanders of the Laurel Branch to a point where it 

intersects with Virginia Secondary Route 624 (Drill Rd); thence leaving Laurel Branch in 

a northeasterly direction, a straight line (which line touches the northern terminus of 

Virginia Secondary Route 715) to a point on the crest of Stone Cove Ridge, Elevation 

2,796 ft. (as shown on U.S. Geological Survey Map “Honaker Quadrangle”); thence in a 

northerly direction with the meanders of the ridge to Stone Cove Ridge to elevation 

marker 2,805 ft. (as shown on U.S. Geological Survey Map “Honaker Quadrangle”); 

thence in a northerly direction with the meanders of the ridge of Stone Cove Ridge to 

elevation marker 2,839 ft. (as shown on U.S. Geological Survey Map “Honaker 

Quadrangle”); thence in a northerly direction with the ridge of Stone Cove Ridge 

crossing Virginia Secondary Route 622 (Miller Creek Rd) to an unnamed cemetery 

adjacent to Virginia Secondary Route 622 (as shown on U.S. Geological Survey Map 

“Honaker Quadrangle”) on Fuller Mountain; thence with the ridge of Fuller Mountain in a 

northeasterly direction to a point in the Russell – Buchanan County Line; thence in a 

southwesterly direction with the meanders of the Russell – Buchanan County Line to the 

point of BEGINNING. 

 Section 24.2-311. – The Geographical boundary of Swords Creek Precinct, 

No. 402-2020 is as follows: 

 BEGINNING at a point in the ridge of Fuller Mountain on the Russell – Buchanan 

County Line, the northeast corner of the Drill Precinct; thence with the Russell – 

Buchanan County Line in an northeasterly direction to a point where the Russell  - 

Buchanan – Tazewell County Lines meet; thence in a southeasterly direction with the 



 

28 

 

Russell – Tazewell County Line to the intersection with the Little River; thence in a 

southwesterly direction with the meanders of Little River, the Lebanon – New Garden 

Magisterial district Line, as referred to in the above-referenced order of the Circuit Court 

of Russell County, to its intersection with Virginia Highway 80 (Red Bud Hwy); thence in 

a northerly direction with the meanders of Virginia Highway 80 to its intersection with 

Town of Honaker Corporation Limits; thence in a northeasterly direction with the 

meanders of the Town of Honaker Corporation Limits to its intersection with Virginia 

Highway 67 (Swords Creek Rd); thence in a westerly direction with the meanders of 

Virginia Highway 67 to its intersection with Virginia Secondary Route 637 (Wysor Valley 

Rd) at Gardener; thence in a northwest direction with Virginia Secondary Route 637 to 

its intersection with Virginia Secondary Route 780 (Call Valley Rd); thence in a 

northwesterly direction, a straight line to a point on the crest of Stone Cove Ridge, 

elevation 2,796 ft. (as shown on U.S. Geological Survey Map “Honaker Quadrangle”); a 

common point in the Honaker, Drill and Swords Creek Precinct Lines, thence in a 

northerly direction with the meanders of the ridge of Stone Cove Ridge to elevation 

marker 2,805 ft. (as shown on U.S. Geological Survey Map “Honaker Quadrangle”); 

thence in a northerly direction with the meanders of the ridge of Stone Cove Ridge to 

elevation 2,839 ft. (as shown on U.S. Geological Map “Honaker Quadrangle”); thence in 

a northerly direction with the meanders of the ridge of Stone Cove Ridge crossing 

Virginia Secondary Route 622 (Miller Creek Rd) to an unnamed cemetery to Virginia 

Secondary Route 622 (as shown on U.S. Geological Map “Honaker Quadrangle”) on 

Fuller Mountain; thence with the ridge of Fuller Mountain in a northeasterly direction to a 

point in the Russell – Buchanan County Line to the point of BEGINNING. 



29 

Section 24.2-312 – The geographical boundary description of the Honaker 

Precinct, No. 403-2020 is as follows: 

BEGINNING at a point where Virginia Highway 67 intersection with the Town of 

Honaker Corporation Limits; thence in a northwestern direction with the meanders of the 

Town of Honaker Corporation Limits to its intersection with Virginia Highway 80 

(Redbud Hwy.); thence in a southwesterly direction with the meanders of the Town of 

Honaker Corporation Limits to its intersection with Virginia Secondary Route 646 

(Tunnel Rd.); thence in a southeasterly direction with the meanders of the Town of 

Honaker Corporation Limits to its intersection with Lewis Creek; thence in a southerly 

direction with the meanders of Lewis Creek to its intersection with the Clinch River; 

thence in an easterly direction with the meanders of the Clinch River to its intersection 

with Virginia Highway 80 (Redbud Hwy.);  thence in a northwesterly direction with 

Virginia Highway 80 (Redbud Hwy.) to its intersection with the Town of Honaker 

Corporation Limits; thence in a northeasterly direction with the meanders of the Town of 

Honaker Corporation Limits to its intersection with Virginia Highway 67 the point of 

BEGINNING. 

ARTICLE 6. 

Boundary Description Voter Precincts in Election District 5-2020  

Section 24.2-313. – The geographical boundary of the West Lebanon Precinct, 

No. 501-2020 is as follows: 

BEGINNING at a point where Virginia Secondary Route 657 (Green Valley Rd) 

intersects with Virginia Secondary Route 1063 (Rolling Meadows Rd); thence in a 



 

30 

 

southerly direction with Virginia Secondary Route 1063 and beyond its termination in a 

straight line to the Russell – Washington County Line of top of Clinch Mountain; thence 

with the Russell – Washington County line in a southwesterly direction to it intersects 

with American Electric power company’s 138KV power line; thence in an northeasterly 

direction with said power line to its intersection with the Castlewood –Lebanon 

Magisterial district line as established by the above-referenced Order of the Circuit 

Court of Russell County thence in a northeasterly direction with the meanders of the 

Castlewood – Lebanon Magisterial district line to it intersects with Virginia Secondary 

Route 640 (Long Hollow Rd); thence in a westerly direction to Virginia Secondary Route 

640 to its intersection of abandoned 672; thence in a northwesterly direction in a straight 

line to a point southwesterly of the intersection of Virginia Secondary Route 882 (Lost 

Valley Rd), Virginia Secondary Route 640, and north of Gray Cemetery (as shown on 

the U.S. Geological Survey map “ Lebanon Quadrangle”); thence in a easterly direction 

in a straight line to its intersection with Virginia Highway 82 (Cleveland Rd); thence in a 

southerly direction with the meanders of Virginia Highway 82 (Cleveland Rd);  to its 

intersection with Virginia Secondary Route 640 (River Mountain Rd); thence in a 

northwesterly direction with the meanders of Virginia Secondary Route 640 (River 

Mountain Rd) to its intersects with American Electric Power 138 KV power line; thence 

in a southeasterly direction with said power line to its intersection with Big Cedar Creek;   

thence in a southerly direction with the meanders of Big Cedar Creek to its intersection 

with E Main St; thence westerly direction to it intersection with and Virginia Secondary 

Route 658 (Big Cedar Creek Rd); thence in a southerly direction with Virginia 

Secondary Route 658 (Big Cedar Creek Rd) to its intersection with Elliott Dr; thence in a 



31 

westerly direction with the meander of Elliott Dr to its intersection with Regional Park 

Rd; thence in a northerly direction to it intersection with US Highway 19; thence in a 

westerly direction with US Highway 19 to the start of the Lebanon Second Southbound 

Exit; thence in a straight line to the intersection of Ketron Ave and Career Tech Dr; 

thence following the meanders of Career tech Dr to the intersection of Pittiston Rd; 

thence in an southerly direction to its intersection with Regional Park Rd; thence in 

southwesterly direction in a straight line, to the Town of Lebanon Corporation Limits; 

thence in a westerly direction with the Town of Lebanon Corporation Limits to it 

intersects with Virginia Secondary Route 654 (Pittiston Rd); thence in a southerly 

direction, leaving the Town of Lebanon, to its intersection with Virginia Secondary Route 

664, (Stone Bruise); thence in a westerly direction with the meanders of Virginia 

Secondary Route 659 (Stone Bruise to its intersection with Virginia Secondary Route 

660 (Coal Tipple Hollow); thence in a southerly direction with Virginia Secondary Route 

660 (Coal Tipple Hollow) to its intersection with Virginia Secondary Route 657 (Green 

Valley Road); thence in a northeasterly direction  with Virginia Secondary Route 657 

(Green Valley Road) to its intersection with Virginia Secondary Route 1063 the point of 

BEGINNING. 

ARTICLE 7. 

Boundary Description Voter Precincts in Election District 6-2020  

Section 24.2-314. – The geological boundary of the East Lebanon Precinct, 

No. 601-2020 is as follows: 

BEGINNING at a point on the top of Clinch Mountain where American Electric 

Company’s Carbo – Elk Garden – Saltville No. 2, 138 KV Line intersects the Russell – 



 

32 

 

Washington County Line; thence with said power line in a northwesterly direction to the 

intersection with Virginia primary Highway 80; thence in a northerly direction with 

Virginia Primary Highway 80 to its intersection with U,S. Highway 19; thence in a 

straight northwesterly direction to Fuller Cemetery (as shown on U.S. Geological Survey 

Map “Elk Garden Quadrangle”); thence in a northwesterly direction to a point known as 

Big Rock (as shown on U.S. Geological Survey Map “Elk Garden Quadrangle”) on top 

of The Doubles and River Mountain Ridge; thence in a westerly direction, with the 

meanders of the top of The Doubles and River Mountain to a point in Big Cedar Creek,  

thence in a southerly direction with the meanders of Big Cedar Creek to its intersection 

with E Main St; thence westerly direction to it intersection with and Virginia Secondary 

Route 658 (Big Cedar Creek Rd); thence in a southerly direction with Virginia 

Secondary Route 658 (Big Cedar Creek Rd) to its intersection with Elliott Dr; thence in a 

westerly direction with the meander of Elliott Dr to its intersection with Regional Park 

Rd; thence in a northerly direction to it intersection with US Highway 19; thence in a 

westerly direction with US Highway 19 to the start of the Lebanon Second Southbound 

Exit; thence in a straight line to the intersection of Ketron Ave and Career Tech Dr; 

thence following the meanders of Career Tech Dr to the intersection of Pittiston Rd; 

thence in an southerly direction to its intersection with Regional Park Rd; thence in 

southwesterly direction in a straight line, to the Town of Lebanon Corporation Limits; 

thence in a westerly direction with the Town of Lebanon Corporation Limits to it 

intersects with Virginia Secondary Route 654 (Pittiston Rd); thence in a southerly 

direction, leaving the Town of Lebanon, to its intersection with Virginia Secondary Route 

664, (Stone Bruise); thence in a westerly direction with the meanders of Virginia 



33 

Secondary Route 659 (Stone Bruise to its intersection with Virginia Secondary Route 

660 (Coal Tipple Hollow); thence in a southerly direction with Virginia Secondary Route 

660 (Coal Tipple Hollow) to its intersection with Virginia Secondary Route 657 (Green 

Valley Road); thence in a northeasterly direction  with Virginia Secondary Route 657 

(Green Valley Road) to its intersection with Virginia Secondary Route 1063; thence in a 

southerly direction with Virginia Secondary Route 1063 and beyond its termination in a 

straight line to the Russell – Washington County Line on top of Clinch Mountain; thence 

with the Russell – Washington County Line in a northeasterly direction to the point of 

BEGINNING. 

Section 24.2-315. – The geographical boundary of the Elk Garden Precinct, 

No. 602-2020 is as follows: 

BEGINNING at a point where the Little River intersects with the Russell – 

Tazewell County Line; thence in a Southwesterly direction with the meanders of the 

Little River, the Lebanon – New Garden Magisterial District Line, as referred to in the 

above-referenced Order of the Circuit Court of Russell County to its intersection with 

Virginia Secondary Route 636; thence with the meanders of Virginia Secondary Route 

636 in a southerly direction to its intersection with Virginia Secondary Route 640; thence 

in a southwestern direction in a straight line to its intersection with American Power 

Company’s 138 KV power line; thence in an northwesterly direction to its intersection 

with Virginia Highway 80 (Redbud Hwy); thence in an southerly direction with the 

meanders of Virginia Highway 80 to the crest of The Doubles and River Mountain (as 

shown on the U.S. Geological Survey Map “Elk Garden Quadrangle”); thence in a 

westerly direction, with the meanders of the top of The Doubles and river Mountain to a 



 

34 

 

point known as Big Rock (as shown on U.S. Geological Survey Map “Elk Garden 

Quadrangle”); thence in a straight southeasterly direction to Fuller Cemetery (as shown 

on U.S. Geological Survey Map “Elk Garden Quadrangle”); thence in a straight 

southeasterly direction to the intersection of U.S. Highway 19 and Virginia Primary 

Highway 80; thence in a southerly direction with Virginia Primary Highway 80 to its 

intersection with American Electric Company’s Carbo – Elk Garden – Saltville No. 2, 

138KV power line; thence running with said power line in a southeasterly direction to the 

top of clinch Mountain at a point in the Russell – Washington County Line; thence in a 

northeasterly direction with the Russell – Washington County Line to a corner of Russell 

- Washington – Smyth Counties; thence in a northeasterly direction with the Russell – 

Smyth County Line to a corner of Russell – Smyth – Tazewell Counties; thence in a 

northwesterly direction with the Russell – Tazewell County Line to the point of 

BEGINNING. 

CHAPTER 4. 

ARTICLE 1. 

Central Absentee Voter Precinct 

 Section 24.2-400. – Absentee Voter Precinct –  

A. There is hereby created a Central Absentee Precinct in the Office of the 

General Registrar/Electoral Board of Russell County, Virginia, for the purpose of 

receiving, counting, and recording absentee ballots cast in the County. 

 The Absentee Voter Precinct shall be used in General Elections and Primary 

Elections for all Federal Offices, Statewide Offices, Constitutional, and Local Officers. 



 

35 

 

 B. The Absentee Voter Precinct shall have at least three (3) officers of 

election as provided for in other precincts.  The number of officers shall be determined 

by the Electoral Board of Russell County, Virginia.  

 C. If any voter brings an unmarked ballot to the Central Absentee Voter 

Precinct on the day of the election, he or she shall be allowed to vote it.  If any voter 

brings an unmarked ballot to the Electoral Board on or before the day of the election, he 

or she shall be allowed to vote it, and his or her ballot shall be delivered to the Absentee 

Voter precinct before the closing of the polls. 

 The officer at the Absentee Voter Precinct shall determine any appeal by any 

other voter whose name appears on the absentee voter applicant list and who offers to 

vote in person  If the officers at the Absentee Voter precinct produce such records, the 

voter shall be allowed to vote in person at the Absentee Voter Precinct and have his or 

her vote counted with other absentee votes.  If the voter’s appeal is denied, the 

provisions of §24.2-708 of the Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended shall be applicable, 

and the officers shall advise the voter that he or she may vote on presentation of a 

statement signed by him or her that has not received an absentee ballot and subject to 

felony penalties for making false statements pursuant to §24.2-1016 of the Code of 

Virginia, 1950, as amended. 

 D. Absentee ballots may be processed as required by §24.2-711 of the Code 

of Virginia, 1950, as amended by the officers of election at the Central Absentee Voter 

precinct prior to the closing of the polls but the ballot box shall not be opened, and the 

counting of ballots shall not begin prior to that time.  In the case of punch card or mark 

sense ballots to be inserted in electronic counting equipment, the ballot box may be 

Russell County
24.2-712 - " The number of officers shall be determined by the electoral board and general registrar. "

Russell County
24.2-712 "If any voter brings an unmarked ballot to the central absentee voter precinct on the day of the election, he shall be allowed to vote it. "

Russell County
The word "it" at the end of the sentence is omitted. On the day of the election, a voter can only vote the unmarked ballot they bring. In person absentee at the CAP precinct ends the Saturday before election day.



 

36 

 

opened, and the absentee ballots may be inserted in the counting equipment prior to the 

closing of the polls in accordance with procedures prescribed by the State Electoral 

Board, including procedures to preserve ballot secrecy, but no ballot count totals shall 

be initiated prior to that time. 

 As soon as the polls are closed in the county, the officers of election at the 

Central Absentee Voter Precinct shall proceed to ascertain and record the vote given by 

absentee ballot and report the results in the manner provided for counting and reporting 

ballots generally in Article 4 (§24.2-643 et seq.) of Chapter 6 of Title 24.2 Elections, 

Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended. 

E. The electoral board may provide that the officers of election for the Central 

Absentee Voter precinct may be assigned to work all or a portion of the time that the 

precinct is open on Election Day subject to the following conditions: 

1. The chief officer and the assistant chief officer, appointed pursuant to 

§24.2-115 to represent the two political parties, are on duty at all times: 

and 

2. No officer, political party representative, or other candidate representative 

shall leave the precinct after any ballots have been counted until the polls 

are closed and the count for the precinct is completed and reported. 

CHAPTER 5. 
ARTICLE 1. 

Miscellaneous Provisions 

 Section 24.2-500. – Notice to voters. – The General Registrar shall notify 

any registered voter whose election district, precinct or polling place is changed 

at least fifteen days prior to the next general, special, or primary election. 



 

37 

 

 Section 24.2-501. – Severability. – Should any section or provision of this 

ordinance be decided to be invalid or unconstitutional, such decisions shall not 

affect the validity or constitutionality of any other section or provision of this 

ordinance. 

 Section 24.2-502. – Effective date. – This ordinance shall be in full force 

and effect upon its adoption and enactment by the Board of Supervisors. 

 Adopted this ______ day of _______, 2022. 

 
The Members of the Board voted as follows: 
 
Present          Vote 
Lou Ann Wallace, Chairman        
Oris Christian, Vice-Chairman        
Tim Lovelace           
Carl Rhea           
David Eaton           
Steve Breeding 
Rebecca Dye          
 
 
            
    LOU ANN WALLACE, CHAIRPERSON 
    RUSSELL COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
 
            

LONZO LESTER, CLERK 
RUSSELL COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 



     Board of Supervisors         Action Item A-1 
137 Highland Drive  Presenter: Chairperson 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

  Meeting: 3/7/22       6:00 PM 

Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

Approval of Minutes 

Request approval of the minutes from the following meeting: 

• Unapproved minutes of February 7, 2022

STAFF  RECOMMENDATION(s): 
Board discretion 

SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 
Motion to approve Board Minutes. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

• Board Minutes



February 07, 2022 

A regular monthly meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors was held on Monday, February 
07, 2022 at 5:00 pm beginning with Executive (closed) Session followed by the regular meeting at 6:00 
pm at the Russell County Government Center in Lebanon, Virginia. 

The Chair called the meeting to order. 

Roll Call by the Clerk: 

Present: 

Tim Lovelace 
Lou Wallace 
Carl Rhea 
David Eaton 
Steve Breeding 
Rebecca Dye 
Oris Christian 

Lonzo Lester, Clerk 
Vicki Porter, Deputy Clerk 
Katie Patton, County Attorney 

Absent: 
None 

EXECUTIVE (CLOSED) SESSION 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
enter Executive (closed) Session to discuss legal matters pursuant to Section 2.2-3711(A)(5)(7)(8) 
concerning a potential business locating at the Moss III Property, Project Jonah Ordinance and 
Interjurisdictional Agreement, and the Russell County Employee Insurance Retirement Program. 

The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, David Eaton, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 

APPROVAL TO RETURN TO REGULAR SESSION 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
return to regular session. 

The vote was: 
Aye:   Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, David Eaton, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 



CERTIFICATION OF CLOSED SESSION 

Pursuant to § 2.2-3712(D) of the Code of Virginia 1950, as amended each member of the Board of 
Supervisors upon the Roll Call certifies that to the best of their knowledge (I) only public business 
matters lawfully exempted from the open meeting requirements under the Virginia Freedom of 

Information Act and (ii) only such public business matters that were identified in the motion(s) by which 
the closed meeting was convened were heard, discussed, or considered in the meeting by the Board of 
Supervisors. 

Any member of the Board of Supervisors who believes that there was a departure from the 
requirements of clauses (I) and (ii) above shall so state prior to the vote, indicating the substance of the 
departure that, in his or her judgment, has taken place. 

Are there any who believe a departure has taken place? Seeing none, if you agree that the matters heard, 
discussed, or considered during the closed meeting were pursuant only to the motion(s) by which the 
closed meeting was convened, please signify by saying aye or yes. 

Tim Lovelace – AYE 
Lou Wallace – AYE 
Carl Rhea – AYE 
David Eaton – AYE 
Rebecca Dye - AYE 
Steve Breeding – AYE 
Oris Christian – AYE 

Invocation by Caleb Johnson, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. 

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors    
to approve the agenda as amended. 

The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 

PUBLIC HEARING HELD ON AN ORDINANCE TO MUTUALLY PERFORM INSPECTIONS 

Pursuant to being advertised for two consecutive (2) weeks in a local newspaper, a public hearing was 
held on an Ordinance to Permit Russell and Tazewell County Building Inspection Officials and Russell and 
Tazewell County Erosion and Sediment Control Officials to mutually perform inspections upon property 
owned by Pure Salmon Virginia, LLC in Russell County and Tazewell County. 

The Chairperson opened the public hearing to comments, hearing none the public hearing was closed. 



 

PUBLIC HEARING HELD ON PROJECT JONAH INTERJURISDICTIONAL AGREEMENT 

Pursuant to being advertised for two consecutive (2) weeks in a local newspaper, a public hearing was 
held on Project Jonah Interjurisdictional Agreement.  

The Chairperson opened the public hearing to comments, hearing none the public hearing was closed. 

Paul Inskeep, Project Jonah Engineer gave the Board a brief update of the project and construction. 

 

New Business 

APPROVAL OF THE JANUARY 03, 2022 MINUTES 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the January 03, 2022 and February 02, 2022 minutes as presented and dispense with the 
reading thereof. 

The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Rebecca Dye, Oris Christian and Lou Wallace 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF GENERAL COUNTY INVOICES 
 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve general county invoices in the amount of $822,868.36, including reoccurring and withholdings. 

The vote was: 

Aye:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye, Oris Christian and Lou Wallace 
Nay:  None 
 
Committee Appointments 
 

KEITH RAY APPOINTED TO THE RUSSELL COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
Motion made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
appoint Keith Ray to the Russell County Planning Commission for a four (4) year, said term ending 
February 07, 2026. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye, Lou Wallace, Oris Christian and Lou Wallace 
Nay:  None 
                  
 
County Attorney Reports and Requests 
 
Katie Patton, County Attorney discussed the Noise Ordinance. 



 
Steve Breeding volunteered to speak with Sheriff Steve Dye about how the ordinance will be enforced 
as far as determining what constitutes a violation. He will report back to the Board at the March 
meeting. 
 
The County Attorney also discussed the Employee Insurance Retirement Incentive Program and the 
Project Jonah mutual agreements concerning building inspections. 
 

APPROVAL OF THE RUSSELL COUNTY EMPLOYEE INSURANCE RETIREMENT PROGRAM 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the Russell County Employee Insurance Retirement Program and amendments to the Personnel 
Policy and a Resolution pertaining to a one-time waiver of the requirement that an application pursuant 
to the insurance retirement program must be received at least ninety (90) days prior to the employee's 
effective retirement date. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye, Oris Christian and Lou Wallace 
Nay:  None 
 
APPROVAL OF AN ORDINANCE FOR BUILDING OFFICIALS FROM RUSSELL AND TAZEWELL COUNTY TO 

MUTUALLY INSPECT PROPERTY OWNED BY PURE SALMON VIRGINIA, LLC AND APPROVAL OF PROJECT 
JONAH INTERJURISDICTIONAL AGREEMENT  

 
Motion made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve an Ordinance to Permit Russell and Tazewell County Building Inspection Officials and Russell 
and Tazewell Erosion and Sediment Control Inspection Officials to Mutually Perform Inspections Upon 
Property Owned by Pure Salmon Virginia, LLC in Russell County and Tazewell County Virginia and to 
approve the Project Jonah Interjurisdictional Agreement as presented. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye, Oris Christian and Lou Wallace 
Nay:  None 

 
APPROVAL OF VDOT RESOLUTION FOR HWY SYSTEM CHANGES, ROUTE 1056, WINDY LANE 

 
Motion made by David Eaton, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a VDOT Resolution Highway System Changes Resulting from the Construction of VDOT Project 
1056-083-R30, N501, Route 1056, Windy Hill Lane. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Carl Rhea, Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Rebecca Dye, Oris Christian and Lou Wallace 
Nay:  None 
 
APPROVAL OF VDH AND RUSSELL COUNTY AGREEMENT FOR FUNDING AND SERVICES OF THE RUSSELL 

COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT 
 



Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the Virginia Department of Health and Russell County Agreement for funding services of the 
Russell County Health Department. 

The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye, Oris Christian and Lou Wallace 
Nay:  None 

APPROVAL OF THE COST ALLOCATION PLAN RENEWAL WITH ROBINSON, FARMER AND COX 
ASSOCIATES 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the PPLC Proposal from Robinson, Farmer, Cox Associates for Central Services Cost Allocation 
Plan. 

The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye, Oris Christian and Lou Wallace 
Nay:  None 

APPROVAL OF A VDOT GRANT TO THE COMMUNITY OF DANTE DEPOT RESTORATION 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
accept a VDOT Grant for the Community of Dante Depot Restoration. 

The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye, Oris Christian and Lou Wallace 
Nay:  None 

APPROVAL OF A DCJS LOCAL LAW ENFORCEMENT BLOCK (LOLE) GRANT PROGRAM 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to accept 
a DCJS Local Law Enforcement Block (LOLE) Grant Program. 

The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Carl Rhea, Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Rebecca Dye, Oris Christian and Lou Wallace 
Nay:  None 

APPROVAL OF THE SURPLUS AND SALE RUSSELL COUNTY DISPOSAL TRUCK 

Motion made by Oris Christian, second Rebecca Dye and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the surplus and sale of a Russell County Disposal Truck. 

The vote was: 
Aye:  Oris Christian, Rebecca Dye, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace and Lou Wallace 
Nay:  None 



APPROVAL TO PURCHASE A RUSSELL COUNTY DISPOSAL TRUCK 

Motion made by Oris Christian, second Rebecca Dye and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the purchase of a Russell County Disposal Truck. 

The vote was: 
Aye:  Oris Christian, Rebecca Dye, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace and Lou Wallace 
Nay:  None 

APPROVAL OF A VA DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY DANTE AREA COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a Virginia Department of Energy Dante Area Community Redevelopment Project.  

The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Rebecca Dye, Oris Christian and Lou Wallace 
Nay:  None 

APPROVAL TO DONATE A 2000 INTERNATIONAL AMBULANCE TO THE RC SEARCH AND RESCUE 

Motion made Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
donate a 2000 International Ambulance to the Russell County Search and Rescue as requested by the 
Russell County Sheriff's Office. 

The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Rebecca Dye, Oris Christian and Lou Wallace 
Nay:  None 

The Chairperson adjourned the meeting. 

____________________________   _________________________ 
Clerk of the Board             Chairperson 



  Board of Supervisors           Action Item A-2 
137 Highland Drive Presenter: Chairperson 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

  Meeting: 3/7/21      6:00 PM 

Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

Approval of Expenditures 

Request approval of the County’s February 2022 Monthly Expenditures: 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):  
County’s February 2022 Monthly Expenditures are in compliance with budget and operational 

services. 

SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 
Motion to approve County’s February 2022 Monthly Expenditures. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

• February 2022 Monthly Expenditures

















Board of Supervisors 
137 Highland Drive 

 Action Item:  A-3  
Presenter: Chairperson  

Lebanon, VA 24266 

  Meeting: 3/7/22    6:00 PM 

Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

      Board Appointments 

SVCC Local College Board 

Greg Brown (Resigned)         4 Year-Term        March 7, 2022 

RC Public Service Authority (PSA) 

Vacant   4 Year-Term    June 24, 2023 





















Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

    Board of Supervisors   Action Item 
137 Highland Drive     Presenters - Attorney 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

  Meeting: 3/7/22   6:00 PM 

County Attorney Reports
1. RC Noise Ordinance

2. Ordinance Amending the Ordinance of Russell County Elections – District
and Precinct Boundaries

3. CPRWMA 2022 Manpower and User Agreement

Staff Recommendation(s):

Board Discretion. 

Suggested Motion(s): 

Motion Required.  

ATTACHMENTS:
• Various



RUSSELL COUNTY NOISE ORDINANCE 

• Purpose. 

The purpose of this ordinance is to establish reasonable time, place, and manner 
regulations pertaining to excessive or unwanted sound. Through content-neutral 
regulations, this article strikes an appropriate balance between the rights of individuals 
to engage in activities that create or disseminate sounds at reasonable levels, and the 
right of the public to a peaceful and healthful environment. It is not the purpose of this 
article to interfere unduly with the rights of free speech or the exercise of religion and, 
further, it is not the purpose of this ordinance to implement these regulations in a 
manner that is based on the content of the sound. In establishing these regulations, the 
Board of Supervisors finds the following: 

A. Threat to the public health, safety and welfare posed by excessive or unwanted sound. 
Inadequately controlled sound presents a growing danger to the public health, safety, 
and welfare. Studies have found that these dangers include hearing impairment, 
interference with spoken communication, sleep disturbances, cardiovascular 
disturbances, disturbances in mental health, impaired task performance, and unwanted 
emotional responses. These effects can lead to, among other things, a wide range of 
physical problems such as hearing disabilities, increased blood pressure, increased 
heart rates, abnormal heart rhythms and fatigue, mental health problems such as 
depression, anxiety, nervousness, stress, and emotional instability, an increased risk of 
accidents and errors in task performance, and negative effects on learning, reading 
attention, work performance, school performance, and interpersonal relationships. 

B. Persons particularly vulnerable to excessive or unwanted sound. Studies have found 
that the elderly, medical patients, infants, and children are particularly vulnerable to 
excessive or unwanted sound. 

C. Public safety danger posed by excessive or unwanted sound created by or emanating 
from motor vehicles. Excessive or unwanted sound created by, or emanating from, motor 
vehicles interferes with the safe operation of other motor vehicles. 

D. Effects of increases in sound pressure levels. Studies have characterized the human 
reaction to increases in sound pressure levels over ambient levels, as measured in 
decibels (dB), as "intrusive" for increases of five to 10 decibels, "very noticeable" for 
increases of 10 to 15 decibels, "objectionable" for increases of 15 to 20 decibels, and 
"very objectionable to intolerable" for increases of 20 or more decibels. 

E. Right of public to be free from an environment of excessive or unwanted sound. The 
public has a right to and should be free from an environment of excessive or unwanted 
sound, and the Board has a significant governmental interest in providing an 
environment free of excessive or unwanted sound. 



State Law reference— Va. Code § 15.2-1200 . 

• Administration and enforcement. 

The Sheriff is hereby designated the agent of the Board of Supervisors for administering 
and enforcing this ordinance. The Sheriff may be assisted in enforcing this ordinance by 
employees of the Sheriff’s office and other officers and employees of the County. 

State Law reference— Va. Code § 15.2-1200 . 

• Applicability. 

This ordinance applies to sound produced within the County, regardless of whether the 
complainant or the receiving property is within or without the County. 

State Law reference— Va. Code § 15.2-1200 . 

• Definitions. 

The following definitions apply to this ordinance unless the context requires a different 
meaning: 

"Agricultural activity" means the bona fide production or harvesting of agricultural 
products as defined in section 3.2-6400 of the Code of Virginia including tilling soil for 
raising crops; operating agricultural industries or businesses, including, but not limited 
to, orchards, fruit packing plants, dairies, nurseries, farm sales, farm stands and 
farmers' markets; or any combination of the foregoing activities but shall not include 
the above ground application or storage of sewage sludge, or the storage or disposal of 
non-agricultural excavation material, waste and debris if the excavation material, waste 
and debris are not generated on the farm, subject to the provisions of the Virginia Waste 
Management Act. 

"Audible" means a sound that can be detected by a person using his or her unaided 
hearing faculties, provided that a sound is determined to be audible even if specific 
words or phrases cannot be discerned. Sound is audible within a building pursuant to 
ordinance if it is audible at least four feet from the wall nearest the sound source, with 
the doors and windows of the dwelling unit or applicable room of the complainant's 
building closed and, where audibility is determined from a dwelling unit or hotel room, 
the dwelling unit or hotel room is located on a different parcel than the parcel on which 
the sound source is located. 

"Dwelling unit" means a single unit designed to provide complete and independent 
living facilities for one or more persons and having permanent provisions for sleeping 
and sanitation. 

about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank


"Emergency operation" means any emergency service provided by any police, sheriff, 
fire, or fire and rescue department, any volunteer fire company, any volunteer rescue 
squad, any ambulance service or any other emergency service requiring a prompt 
response, and any emergency repair of public facilities or public utilities. 

"Hospital" means any facility licensed pursuant to Virginia Code § 32.1-123 et seq. in 
which the primary function is the provision of diagnosis, treatment, and medical and 
nursing services, surgical or nonsurgical, for two or more nonrelated individuals, 
including hospitals known under various names such as children's hospitals, 
sanatoriums, sanitariums and general, acute, rehabilitation, chronic disease, short-
term, long-term, outpatient surgical, and inpatient or outpatient maternity hospitals. 

"Hotel" means any place offering to the public for compensation transitory lodging or 
sleeping accommodations, overnight or otherwise, including but not limited to facilities 
known under various names such as hotels, motels, travel lodges, tourist homes, or 
hostels. 

"Hotel room" means a room within a hotel designed for sleeping. 

"Mixed-use site" means a single unified development on one or more units or pieces of 
real property on which both commercial and residential uses exist. 

"Motorcycle" means every motor vehicle that is designed to travel on not more than 
three wheels in contact with the ground and is capable of traveling at speeds in excess 
of 35 miles per hour. 

"Motor vehicle" means every vehicle that is self-propelled or designed for self-
propulsion and includes, but is not limited to, any device defined in Virginia Code § 46.2-
100 as an "electric personal assistive mobility device," "electric power-assisted bicycle," 
"golf cart," "moped," "motorized skateboard or scooter" or "utility vehicle," but does not 
include a device moved by human power or used exclusively on stationary rails or tracks 
that is self-propelled or designed for self-propulsion. Any structure designed, used, or 
maintained primarily to be loaded on or affixed to a motor vehicle to provide a mobile 
dwelling, sleeping place, office, or commercial space is considered a part of a motor 
vehicle. 

"Multi-family dwelling unit" means a structure composed of two or more dwelling units 
including, but not limited to, apartments, condominiums, townhouses, and duplexes. 

"Nursing home" means any facility or any identifiable component of any facility licensed 
pursuant to Virginia Code § 32.1-123 et seq. in which the primary function is to provide, 
on a continuing basis, nursing services and health-related services for the treatment 
and inpatient care of two or more nonrelated individuals, including facilities known 
under various names such as convalescent homes, skilled nursing facilities or skilled 

about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank


care facilities, intermediate care facilities, extended care facilities, and nursing or 
nursing care facilities. 

"Off-road vehicle" means every vehicle that is: (i) an all-terrain vehicle, which is a three-
wheeled or four-wheeled motor vehicle powered by a gasoline or diesel engine and 
generally characterized by large, low-pressure tires, a seat designed to be straddled by 
the operator, and handlebars for steering, and which is intended for off-road use by an 
individual rider on various types of unpaved terrain; (ii) a go-cart, which is a four-
wheeled vehicle that has a low center of gravity and is typically used in racing or riding 
on relatively level services; (iii) an off-road motorcycle, which is a motorcycle designed 
exclusively for off-road use by an individual rider with not more than two wheels in 
contact with the ground; and (iv) a motorcycle-like device commonly known as a trail-
bike or mini-bike. The term "off-road vehicle" does not include: (i) a farm utility vehicle, 
which is a motor vehicle that is designed for off-road use and is used as a farm, 
agricultural, or horticultural service vehicle; or (ii) a utility vehicle, which is a motor 
vehicle that is designed and used as a general maintenance, security or other similar 
service vehicle. 

"Outdoor" means either outside a structure, or inside a structure that has open 
windows, doors, or other openings that allow the activity inside the structure to be 
visible or audible outside the structure. 

"Parcel" means, as appropriate when the term is applied in conjunction with a reference 
to a property line, either: (i) a separate unit or piece of real property; (ii) any area within 
a multi-family dwelling unit that is beyond the vertical and horizontal boundaries of the 
dwelling unit of the complainant; or (iii) any area within a mixed-use site that is beyond 
the interface between the portion of the site owned or occupied by the complainant. 

"Person" means any natural person, association, partnership, corporation, or other 
legal entity. 

"Place of public entertainment" means a building or other place used primarily as a 
cinema, theater, amphitheater, concert hall, public hall, dance hall, restaurant, or other 
place of entertainment open to the public, regardless of whether the payment of money 
or other consideration is required for admission, but does not include a music festival 
authorized by a special use permit under County Code Chapter 18. 

"Produce" or any derivation of the word, means to produce or reproduce, to allow to 
produce or reproduce, to create or allow to be created, or to operate or allow to be 
operated. 

"Property line" means either: (i) an imaginary line along the ground surface, and its 
vertical extension, that separates one unit or piece of real property from another, where 
the unit or piece is under different ownership; (ii) the vertical and horizontal boundaries 
of a dwelling unit that is part of a multi-family dwelling unit building; or (iii) on a mixed-

about:blank


use site, the interface between the portions of the parcel on which different categories 
of activity are being performed. 

"Public property" means real property owned by a governmental entity including, but 
not limited to, any public street as defined in this section. 

"School" means: (i) a public school subject to Virginia Code Title  22.1 ; (ii) a private 
school serving children in one or more grades between kindergarten and grade 12; (iii) 
a school for students with disabilities as that term is defined in Virginia Code § 22.1-
319 ; (iv) a child day center as that term is defined in Virginia Code § 63.2-100 ; (v) the 
University of Virginia; and (vi) Piedmont Virginia Community College. 

"Sound" means the sensation perceived by the sense of hearing. 

"Sound source" means any act or device that emits sound. 

"Sport shooting range" means an area or structure designed for the use of rifles, 
shotguns, pistols, silhouettes, skeet, trap, black powder, or any other similar sport 
shooting. 

"Street" means: (i) a public right-of-way that is part of the primary or secondary system 
of state highways, or is classified as a highway in the interstate system; or (ii) a privately 
owned and maintained travel way for motor vehicles serving two or more single family 
detached dwelling units that are located on two or more separate units or pieces of 
land, one or more multi-family dwelling units, a mixed-use site, or a site used for 
commercial or industrial purposes. 

The meaning of any sound-related term not defined herein shall be obtained from the 
most recent version of the American Standard Acoustical Terminology, if the term is 
defined therein. 

State Law reference— Va. Code § 15.2-1200 . 

• General sound levels prohibited. 

It is unlawful for any person to produce sound that causes at least a 15 dBA increase 
in the sound level above the ambient sound level, as determined as follows: 

 Procedure for measuring sound. 

 Each sound meter reading shall be conducted as provided herein: 

a. Instrument of measurement. Each sound measurement shall be taken 
only from a sound level meter. 

about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank


b. Calibration of sound level meter. An acoustic calibrator authorized by 
the manufacturer of the sound level meter shall have been 
performed within 12 months prior to the date of such reading. The 
user of the sound level meter shall also have calibrated the sound 
level meter within one hour prior to taking sound measurements. 

c. Weather conditions. A windscreen shall be used on the sound level 
meter when sound measurements are being taken. No outdoor 
sound measurements shall be taken during rain or during weather 
conditions in which wind sound is distinguishable from, and is louder 
to the ear than, the sound source being tested. 

d. Scale. Each sound measurements shall be expressed in units of the 
sound level (dBA). In accordance with American National Standards 
Institute specifications for sound level meters. Each measurement 
shall be made using the A-weighted scale with fast response, 
following the manufacturer’s instructions and measuring the 
equivalent sound level. Impulse sounds shall be measured as the 
maximum reading and not the equivalent sound level. 

e. Place of sound measurement. Each sound measurement shall be taken 
no closer to the sound source than the property lines of the receiving 
properties or the property line along which a street fronts. If the 
property line of a receiving property is not readily determinable, the 
sound measurement shall be taken from ay point inside the nearest 
receiving property, or within an occupied structure on receiving 
property. If the property line abutting a street is not readily 
determinable, the sound measurement shall be taken from the edge 
of the pavement which is closest to the source of the sound. Each 
sound measurement taken of a sound source within a multi-family 
structure, such as an apartment building, townhouse development 
and the like, may be made (i) within the interior of another residential 
unit in the same structure or the same development; or (ii) from 
common areas. 

f. Orientation of microphone. To the extent that it is practical to do so, 
the microphone of the sound level meter shall be positioned four to 
five feet above the ground or the floor. The orientation 
recommended by the manufacturer of the sound level meter shall 
supersede the foregoing orientation of the manufacturer’s 
recommendation conflicts therewith. 

g. Duration of measurement. Each sound measurement shall be taken 
over a period of five continuous minutes unless the sound being 
measured is an impulse sound. IF the sound being measured is an 
impulse sound, each sound measurement shall be taken during the 
“impulse” or emission of that sound. The Sheriff shall determine 
whether a sound is an impulse sound for purposes of determining 
the duration of the sound measurement. 



h. Ambient sound measurement. The ambient sound shall be 
measured for each sound measurement as follows:  
1. The ambient sound level shall be averaged over a period of time 
comparable to that for the measurement of the particular sound 
source being measured.  
2. In order to obtain the ambient sound level, the sound source 
being measured shall be eliminated by the source ceasing its sound-
producing activity and the ambient sound level shall be obtained 
from the same location as that for measuring the source sound 
level. If the sound from the sound source cannot be eliminated, the 
ambient sound level shall be measured from an alternative location 
whose ambient sound level is not affected by the sound source in 
accordance with the following procedure:  

a. The alternative location should be as close as feasible as 
that for measuring the source sound level, but located so that the 
sound from the source has as little effect as possible on the ambient 
sound level measurement. Even if the source sound is audible or is 
sufficient to raise the sound level above that which would be 
measured were it inaudible at the alternative location, the reading is 
sufficient for the purpose of this procedure.  

b. The alternative location chosen must be such that 
structures in the vicinity are similar in size and distribution, and the 
local topography is similar in character to the location for the source 
sound level measurement.  

c. Traffic conditions at the time the ambient sound level is 
measured must be similar to those at the location for the sound 
source measurement.  

I.  Determining source sound level Except for new equipment for 
which the owner provides manufacturer's specifications related to 
sound levels accepted by the Sheriff, the sound level from a sound 
source shall be determined by correcting the total sound level for 
ambient sound in accordance with the following procedure:  

1. Subtract the maximum measured ambient sound level from the 
minimum measured total sound level.  
2. In Row A below, find the sound level difference determined 
under paragraph (1) and its corresponding correction factor in Row 
B.  

Row A  
Sound Level  
Difference  
(Decibels)  

0.5  1  2  3  4  5  6  7  8  9  10  

Row B  
Correction Factor  

(Decibels)  

9.6  7  4  3  1.8  1.6  1.2  1.0  0.75  0.6  0.5  



 

3. Subtract the value obtained from Row B under paragraph (2) 
from the minimum measured total sound level to determine the 
source sound level.  
4. If the difference between the total sound level and the ambient 
sound level is greater than 10 dBA, no correction is necessary to 
determine the source sound level.  
 

Except as provided otherwise in this ordinance, it shall be unlawful for any person to operate 
or cause to be operated, any source such that the sound originating from that source causes a 
sound level that exceeds the sound levels in the receiving area, measured pursuant to section, 
as set forth below:  

Receiving Zone  Time Period  Noise Level (dBA)  
Rural Areas and Residential  Daytime  

Nighttime  
60  
55  

Public Space or Institutional  Daytime  
Nighttime  

60  
55  

Commercial  Daytime  
Nighttime  

65  
65  

Industrial  Daytime  
Nighttime  

70  
70  

 

 
 

State Law reference— Va. Code § 15.2-1200 . 

 

• Specific acts prohibited. 

It is unlawful for any person to produce sound from the following acts that meets or 
exceeds the applicable sound levels: 

A. Motor vehicle or motorcycle operation. The sound is produced by: (i) the absence 
of a muffler and exhaust system conforming to Virginia Code §§ 46.2-1047 and 46.2-
1049 on a motor vehicle or a motorcycle; (ii) jackrabbit starts, spinning tires, racing 
engines, or other similar acts in a motor vehicle or on a motorcycle; or (iii) a refrigeration 
unit mounted on a motor vehicle, and either: 

1. On a street or on public property. The motor vehicle or motorcycle is 
operated or parked on a street or on public property, and the sound is audible from a 
distance of 100 feet or more from the motor vehicle or motorcycle; or 

about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank


2. On private property. The motor vehicle or motorcycle is operated or 
parked on private property, and the sound is audible: (i) from a distance of 100 feet or 
more from the property line of the parcel on which the motor vehicle or motorcycle is 
located; or (ii) from inside a dwelling unit or hotel room. 

B. Sound producing or reproducing devices. The sound is produced by any device 
intended primarily for the production or reproduction of sound and either: 

1. Device within or on a motor vehicle on a street or on public property. The 
device is within or on a motor vehicle that is operated or parked on a street or on public 
property, and the sound is audible from a distance of 100 feet or more from the motor 
vehicle; 

2. Device within or on a motor vehicle on private property. The device is within 
or on a motor vehicle that is operated or parked on private property, and the sound is 
audible: (i) from a distance of 100 feet or more from the property line of the parcel on 
which the motor vehicle is located; or (ii) from inside a dwelling unit or hotel room; 

3. Device within a place of public entertainment. The device is located within 
a place of public entertainment, and the sound is audible for a duration of five 
continuous minutes or more, without an interruption of the sound for 30 or more 
consecutive seconds during the five minute period, within any one hour period: (i) from 
a distance of 100 feet or more from the property line of the parcel on which the place 
of public entertainment is located; or (ii) between the hours of 10:00 p.m. any day and 
7:00 a.m. the following day from inside a dwelling unit or hotel room; 

4. Device within a dwelling unit. The device is located within a dwelling unit 
and the sound is audible: (i) from a distance of 100 feet or more from the property line 
of the parcel on which the motor vehicle is located; or (ii) from inside a dwelling unit or 
hotel room; 

5. Device producing outdoor amplified music or serving as an outdoor public 
address system. The device is located to produce outdoor amplified music, to serve as 
an outdoor public address system, or both, including any such device used in 
conjunction with an agricultural activity, and the sound is not otherwise regulated under 
subsections (B)(1) through (4) or otherwise exempt pursuant to County Code, and the 
sound is audible from inside a dwelling unit or hotel room; or 

6. Device in other locations. The device is located other than within or on a 
motor vehicle, a place of public entertainment, a dwelling unit, or is not producing a 
sound subject to subsection (B)(5), and the sound is audible: (i) from a distance of 100 
feet or more from the property line of the parcel on which the device is located; or (ii) 
from inside a dwelling unit or hotel room. 



C. Off-road vehicles. The sound is produced by an off-road vehicle operated in a 
location other than on a street, where the off-road vehicle use is not an authorized 
primary use, and the sound is audible: (i) from a distance of 100 feet or more from the 
property line of the parcel on which the off-road vehicle is located; or (ii) between the 
hours of 10:00 p.m. any day and 7:00 a.m. the following day from inside a dwelling unit 
or hotel room. 

D. Proximity to sound-sensitive institutions. The sound is produced on any street 
adjacent to any school, hospital, nursing home, or court (hereinafter, collectively 
referred to as "institutions"), provided that conspicuous signs are posted and visible on 
the street(s) adjacent to the institution stating that the street is adjacent to a school, 
hospital, nursing home, or court and either: 

1. Schools and courts. The sound is audible from inside the school building 
or the court between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 10:00 p.m. when the school or court is 
in session; or 

2. Hospitals and nursing homes. The sound is audible from inside the hospital 
or nursing home. 

E. Construction, demolition, or maintenance activities. Either of the following: 

1. Sound produced by construction, demolition, or maintenance activities 
between the hours of 10:00 p.m. any day and 7:00 a.m. the following day, and the sound 
is audible: (i) from a distance of 100 feet or more from the property line of the parcel 
on which the activities are located; or (ii) from inside a dwelling unit or hotel room. 

2. Sound produced by construction, demolition, or maintenance activities 
related to a public facility, a public use, or a public improvement between the hours of 
10:00 p.m. any day and 7:00 a.m. the following day, but which is produced by a 
contractor of a governmental entity, or a subcontractor of such a contractor, either off-
site or outside of the project limits when the project limits are established in writing by 
the governmental entity, and the sound is audible: (i) from a distance of 100 feet or 
more from the property line of the parcel on which the activities are located; or (ii) from 
inside a dwelling unit or hotel room. 

F. Silvicultural activities. Sound produced during lawfully permitted bona fide 
silvicultural activities including, but not limited to logging activities, between the hours 
of 10:00 p.m. any day and 6:00 a.m. the following day or at any time if the silvicultural 
activities, including logging activities, are determined to not be lawfully permitted bona 
fide silvicultural activities, and the sound is audible: (i) from a distance of 100 feet or 
more from the property line of the parcel on which the activities are located; or (ii) from 
inside a dwelling unit or hotel room. 



G. Solid waste collection. Sound produced by the collection of solid waste between 
the hours of 10:00 p.m. any day and 6:00 a.m. the following day within a residential area 
and between the hours of 10:00 p.m. any day and 5:00 a.m. the following day within any 
non-residential area, including any mixed-use site, and the sound is audible: (i) from a 
distance of 100 feet or more from the solid waste collection activity; or (ii) from inside a 
dwelling unit or hotel room. 

H. Yard maintenance activities. Sound produced by routine yard maintenance 
activities including, but not limited to, mowing, trimming, clipping, leaf blowing, and 
snow blowing between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m. within a residential area, 
and between the hours of 10:00 p.m. any day and 6:00 a.m. the following day within any 
non-residential area, including any mixed-use site, and the sound is audible: (i) from a 
distance of 100 feet or more from the property line of the parcel on which the activities 
are located; or (ii) from inside a dwelling unit or hotel room. 

I. Loud explosive devices used to repel birds. Sound produced by loud explosive 
devices, including air cannons and carbide cannons, that are designed to produce high 
intensity sound percussions for the purpose of repelling birds, and the sound is audible: 
(i) from a distance of 100 feet or more from the property line of the parcel on which the 
device is located; or (ii) from inside a dwelling unit or hotel room. The use of a loud 
explosive device is not an agricultural activity exempt from this ordinance. 

State Law reference— Va. Code §§ 15.2-918 , 15.2-1200 . 

• Exempt sounds. 

The following sounds are not prohibited by this ordinance: 

A. Agricultural activities. Sound produced by an agricultural activity. 

B. Animals. Sound produced by animals including, but not limited to, barking dogs. 

C. Bells or chimes from place of religious worship. Sound produced by bells, chimes 
or other similar instruments or devices from a place of religious worship. 

D. Construction, demolition, or maintenance activities. The following sounds: 

1. Sound produced by construction, demolition, or maintenance activities, 
except as provided for in this ordinance. 

2. Sound produced by construction, demolition, or maintenance activities 
related to a public facility, a public use, or a public improvement, where the sound is 
produced on-site or within the project limits established in writing by the governmental 
entity. 

about:blank
about:blank


E. Emergency operations. Sound produced in the performance of emergency 
operations including, but not limited to, audible signal devices which are employed as 
warning or alarm signals in case of fire, collision, or imminent danger, or sound 
produced by power generators during power outages and other emergency situations. 

F. Firearms. Sound produced by the lawful discharge of a firearm, including any 
sound produced at a gun club, shooting range, shooting preserve, or target, trap or 
skeet range. 

G. Home appliances. Sound produced by the normal use of home appliances such 
as generators, air conditioners, heat pumps, vacuum cleaners, washing machines, 
dryers, and dishwashers, provided that the appliances are in good repair. 

H. Outdoor amplified music or outdoor public address systems. Sound produced by an 
outdoor amplified music system or outdoor public address system if the sound is 
outdoor amplified music at a farm winery subject to any applicable farm winery 
regulations or is sound produced in conjunction with an outdoor music festival 
authorized by special use permit. 

I. Parades, fireworks and similar officially sanctioned events. Sound produced by 
parades, fireworks, or other similar events which are officially sanctioned, if required; 
provided that the exemption for fireworks shall apply only to fireworks displays duly 
issued a permit. 

J. Person's voice. Sound produced by a person's voice, except as provided in this 
ordinance. 

K. Protected expression. Sound produced by any lawful activity which constitutes 
protected expression pursuant to the First Amendment of the United States 
Constitution, but not amplified expression; provided that the sound is not prohibited by 
this ordinance or other applicable laws. 

L. Public facilities, public uses, and public improvements. Sound produced by the 
operation of a public facility, public use, or public improvement, including, but not 
limited to, any sound which would not be an exempt sound if it was produced by the 
operation of a non-public facility, or non-public use. 

M. School athletic contests or practices, and other school activities; private schools. 
Sound produced by private school athletic contests or practices, and other private 
school activities. 

N. Silvicultural activities. Sound produced during lawfully permitted bona fide 
silvicultural activities including, but not limited to, logging activities, except as provided 
for in this ordinance. 



O. Solid waste collection. Sound produced by the collection of solid waste, except as 
provided for in this ordinance. 

P. Telephones. Normal sound produced by landline and wireless telephones. 

Q. Transportation. Transient sound produced by transportation including, but not 
limited to, public and private airports (except as otherwise regulated), aircraft, railroads, 
and other means of public transit, and sound produced by motor vehicles and 
motorcycles, except as provided for in this ordinance. 

R. Warning devices. Sound produced by a horn or warning device of a vehicle when 
used as a warning device, including back-up alarms for trucks and other equipment. 

S. Yard maintenance activities. Sound produced by routine yard maintenance 
activities including, but not limited to, mowing, trimming, clipping, leaf blowing and 
snow blowing, except as provided in this ordinance. 

State Law reference— Va. Code § 15.2-1200 . 

• Complaints. 

No person shall be charged with violating this ordinance unless the complainant 
appears before a magistrate and requests a summons to be issued. However, when a 
violation is committed in the presence of a police officer, the police officer is authorized 
to initiate all necessary proceedings. 

State Law reference— Va. Code § 15.2-1200 . 

 

 

• Violation and penalty. 

A violation of this ordinance by any person is punishable as a class 3 misdemeanor. 
Persons violating this article include, but are not limited to: (i) any person operating or 
controlling a sound source that is creating the violation; and (ii) any owner, tenant, or 
resident physically present on the parcel where the sound creating the violation is but 
the sound source cannot be determined. 

State Law reference— Va. Code § 15.2-1200 . 

- 

about:blank
about:blank
about:blank


















































 

Board of Supervisors  Action Item C-1 – C-5 
137 Highland Drive Presenter: Administrator 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

                     Meeting: 3/7/22         6:00 PM 
 
 

 

 
 

County Administrator Reports & Requests 
The County Administrator Reports & Request for March 2022: 
 
REPORTS 

 
1. VDOT Dante Depot Facility Renovation Advertisement…………………………. C-1 

 
2. VDOT Land Use Permit for CSX Road Closure to Repair Railroad Crossing                              

on Rte. 626 on March 28, 29, 30, and 31, 2022……………………………………...C-2   
 
REQUESTS 

  
3. Finney Disposal Site Lease.…..………………….…………………………………....C-3 

 
4. Accounts Payable Position Advertisement…………………………………………C-4 

 
5. BOS Discretionary Fund………………………………………………………………..C-5 

 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s): 
Board Discretion.  

 
SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 
Board Discretion.  

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

 
• Various  
 
 
 

 
 

Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

http://www.russellcountyva.us/
http://www.russellcountyva.us/


 

 
 
 

ENGINEERS     ARCHITECTS   

T&L    103 East Main Street    P.O. Box 1307    Wise, Virginia 24293    tel: 276.328.2161    fax: 276.328.1738    www.T-L.com 

February 24, 2022 
 
 
 
 
Mr. Lenzo Lester 
Russell County Board of Supervisors 
137 Highland Drive 
Lebanon, Virginia 24226 
 
Re: Renovation of Dante Depot Facility  
 T&L Project No. 15226 
 
Dear Mr. Lester: 
 
We plan to advertise the above referenced project on Wednesday, March 2, 2022, in the following 
newspaper: Lebanon News.  Before Thompson & Litton can initiate this process, we need your written 
authorization to proceed.  In this regard, please sign where noted below and return this letter to our 
office.  Once we receive your written authorization, we will begin the advertising process.  
 
Should you have any questions concerning this authorization, please give me a call. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
Rita Baker 
Project Manager 
 
Attachment: Advertisement for Bids 
 
 
              
The Russell County Board of Supervisors hereby authorizes Thompson & Litton to advertise the above 
referenced project. 
 
 
 
                       
  Mr. Lenzo Lester, Russell County Administrator    Date 



00 1113/1 

ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS 
 
 

Russell County Board of Supervisors 
137 Highland Drive 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

                             
Separate sealed Bids for the Renovation of Dante Depot Facility for the Russell County Board of Supervisors which 
consists of improvements to the remaining portions of the original structure, will be received by Mr. Lenzo Lester, 
Russell County Administrator, at the Russell County Administrators Office, 137 Highland Drive, Lebanon, VA 24266, 
until 2:00 P.M., local prevailing time, on April 5, 2022, and then at said office publicly opened and read aloud. 
 
The Contract Documents may be examined at Thompson & Litton, 103 East Main Street, Wise, VA; and online at 
TRASCO (http://www.trascoplanroom.com). 
  
Copies of the Contract Documents (electronic and/or hard copy) are available for purchase through TRASCO at 
http://www.trascoplanroom.com.  
 
A non-mandatory Pre-Bid Conference will be held on March 15, 2022, at 10:00 A.M.  All interested parties are 
requested to meet the Architect at project site located at 457 Bunch Town Road, Dante, VA 24237 at that time.  
 
This Project is funded with Transportation Alternative Program (TAP) Funds and must meet the requirements of 
federal funding.  Funds are administered by Virginia Department of Transportation (VDOT). 
 
Bids must be accompanied by Bid security as specified in the Instructions to Bidders. 
 
Each Bidder must be licensed as a Class A contractor in the State of Virginia prior to the execution of the 
Agreement.  Each Bidder must be a Virginia Department of Transportation (VDOT) Pre-Qualified Contractor. 
Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) firms are encouraged to submit Bids. 
 
1) Bidders shall comply with Executive Order 11246, entitled, “Equal Employment Opportunity,” as 

amended by Executive Order 11375 and as supplemented in Department of Labor regulations (41 CFR 
Part 60). 

 
2) If the Bid is in the amount of $10,000 or more, the Bidder and its Subcontractors must comply with the 

provisions of Executive Orders 11246 and 11375, which prohibit discrimination in employment regarding 
race, creed, color, sex, or national origin.  Bidders must certify that they do not, and will not, maintain or 
provide for their employees any facilities that are segregated on a basis of race, color, creed, or national 
origin. 

 
This is a federally assisted project.  Bidders and Contractors performing work under this advertisement are bound 
by the requirements of President’s Executive Order 11246 as amended by Executive Order 11375; Title VI of the 
Civil Rights Act of 1964; Section 109 of Title I of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as 
amended; Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968; the Immigration Reform and Control Act 
of 1986; the Davis-Bacon Act; the Copeland “Anti-Kickback” Act; the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards 
Act; and Public Law 100 202. 
 
The Owner does not discriminate against faith-based organizations in accordance with the Code of Virginia, § 2.2-
4343.1. 

 
        Mr. Lenzo Lester, Russell County Administrator 
March 2, 2022      Russell County Board of Supervisors  
Date      By            

http://www.trascoplanroom.com/
http://www.trascoplanroom.com/


 

 
 

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
P.O. BOX 1768 

BRISTOL, VIRGINIA  24203 
 

                  Stephen C. Brich, P.E. 
                                     COMMISSIONER 

 
Lonzo Lester          February 17, 2022 
Russell County 
137 Highland Drive 
Lebanon VA 24266 
 
RE: Authorization to Advertise 
       UPC 113499 
       Russell County - Dante Depot Restoration 
 
Lonzo, 
 
The required authorization has been secured and the subject project can be advertised for bids. 
 
The project must be advertised for a minimum of 21 days. 
 
Before awarding the construction contract, the Virginia Department of Transportation must approve the lowest 
responsible bid. Please submit copies of the following items to this office so that we can request award 
approval. 
 

• Copy of the final bid documents (Bid Form, Bid Submittal, Bid Bond, Performance, etc…) of all bidders, 
including the signed C104 and C105 forms and SF10CF/FHWA 1273 for the lowest qualified bidder. 

• Letter from the authority formally recommending the contract award to the lowest qualified bidder 
(please include the contractors mailing address of its home office). 

• Location, date and time the bids were opened and by whom. 

• Digital copies of the revised plans and bid documents (as advertised). 

• Copy of the bid tabulation showing all bidders and their bids. 
o A spreadsheet containing bid items and the amounts including probable construction cost 

estimates and each bidders response. Items deviating more than 25% from the estimate will 
require a written explanation. 

 
If the recommended low bid is over the engineers estimate by more than 10%, we will also need a written 
justification explaining why the contract should be awarded. If there were certain bid items or certain conditions 
where the difference can be identified please address them.  
 
If you have any questions feel free to call. 
 
Sincerely 
 
John Dew, P.E. 
Bristol District Local Assistance Coordinator     

      

 
 



This permit only grants permission to use whatever rights the Commonwealth Transportation Board and the Department of 
Transportation have in the right of way and no more, and it is  the obligation of the permittee to secure any other releases or  permission 
that may be needed in order to perform the work.

AUTHORIZATION: In compliance with your application, permission is hereby given insofar as the  Commonwealth Transportation Board has the 
right, power, and authority under sections 33.2 - 210;33.2 - 240;33.2 - 241 of the Code of Virginia as amended, to grant by Special Agreement 
and/or by Land Use Permit  for you to perform  the work and or activity(s) described below:

Location

County/City/Town
From Route Number
To Route Number

Russell County
627                                               
63                                                

Work Description

Perform road closure to facilitate railroad crossing replacement in accordance with the submitted plans on file at the Lebanon Residency Vdot 
office.  Closure dates are March 28, 29, 30 and 31 2022.  72 hour notice required for any scheduling changes.  Contact local 911 office as well as 
school board and county board of supervisors office.

Payment Reference Payment Date Payment Type Payment Amount

3350 2/23/2022 Check $100.00

Applicant has compiled with VA Code Section 56-265.15 Affidavit is attached.

TERMS:Applicable as stated in the VDOT Land Use Permit Regulations (current edition) and/or as per approved plans, and/or regulatory 
instructions, including but not limited to the LUP-SPG and/or agreement(s) attached hereto.

COMMONWEALTH TRANSPORTATION BOARD

Jeff Buchanan

A

R

E

Call before you dig

Allow the required time for marking

Respect and protect the marks/flags

Excavate carefully

FINAL INSPECTION & SURETY REQUIREMENTS: Upon completion of the work or activity(s) authorized under this Land Use Permit, the 
permittee shall contact the following office in writing or by electronic communication to request final inspection and release of the surety obligation 
for this permit.

Lebanon Residency
P.O. Box 127 
Lebanon  VA 24266

Permit No.104-39045 VDOT's Web Site: www.vdot.virginia.gov

Department Of Transportation

Land Use Permit

Commonwealth Of Virginia
Permit No

Status APPROVED

104-39045

Permittee Copy

Call Miss Utility
811

Feb 23, 2022

Effective Date Feb 23, 2022 Expiration Date Aug 22, 2022 Reinstatement Date

C

Highway Route(s) 
From Route Name  
To Route Name

626

By:

Permitee Information

Owner &
Address

CSX Transportation, Inc.
500 Water Street
Jacksonville Florida 32202 

Contact      Nate Goble
Phone#      606-794-5663 
Fax#            
24 Hr#         419-615-9923

Your Job#  Perform road closure to facilitate 
railroad crossing replacement in accordance with 
the submitted plans on file at the Lebanon 
Residency Vdot office.

Agent Safety Services & Supply Inc.
Safety Services & Supply, Inc.
23032 County 
Fort Jennings Ohio 45844

Contact  Andrea Janks
Phone#  419-453-3166 
Fax#        
24 Hr#     419-615-9923

Name    
Surety Account         
Surety Type                
Amount                      
Obligation Amount   0.00
Surety Holder            CUSTOMER

Surety & Account Receivable Information

[     ]  When checkbox is marked, by approving this permit, the issuing official certifies that the entrance was designed in accordance with              
         Appendix F of the Road Design Manual



CONVENIENCE SITE LEASE AGREEMENT 

 THIS LEASE AGREEMENT, made and entered into this ________ day of ___________________, 
2022, by and between HIGHLAND PROPERTIES LLC, herein referred to as Landlord, and the BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS OF RUSSELL COUNTY, VIRGINIA, a body politic and corporate, herein referred to as 
Tenant. 

1. Identification of Property.  Landlord leases to Tenant and Tenant leases from Landlord a 
portion of land, approximately two tenths (.02) acre, located on south side of Route 646 
(John Simms Hill Rd) in the New Garden Magisterial District of Russell County, Virginia being 
that same property conveyed unto Brenda H. Smith by Trustee’s Deed dated January 30, 
1997 of record in the Russell County Circuit Court Clerk’s Office in Deed Book 456, at page 
815.   

2. Rent.  Tenant agree to pay Landlord monthly Rent of TWO HUNDERD ($200) DOLLARS per 
month payable upon the Commencement Date of this Lease. 

3. Term.  The term of this Lease commences on February 1, 2022 (the “Commencement Date”) 
and shall be on-going unless otherwise terminated by either party in accordance with the 
terms hereof.   

4. Warranty.  Landlord warrants that he has full legal authority and right of grant the Tenant 
the estate hereby demised and the easements thereunder pertaining. 

5. Use of Property and Improvements.  Tenant shall use the Property for purpose of a 
“convenience site” for receipt, handling and transfer of solid waste.  At the expiration of this 
Lease Agreement, Tenant may remove any of the improvements made by Tenant, which 
Tenant desires to remove from said premises.  Lessee also shall have the right to remove 
improvements during the term of this Lease Agreement as necessary for continued use and 
operation of the convenience site. 

6. Insurance.  Tenant covenants and agrees that Tenant shall carry insurance in such sums as 
to hold Landlord harmless to third parties utilizing said convenience site, or otherwise hold 
landlord in regard to same.  

7. Laws Governing.  This lease shall be governed by the laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia. 
8. Entire Understanding.  This lease contains the entire understanding of the parties, there 

being no promises or undertakings, written or oral, other than those expressly set forth 
herein. 

9. Defaults; Termination.  If, at any time, either party shall have breached any of the terms or 
covenants contained herein and such breach is not remedied within fifteen (15) days after 
written notice to the defaulting party, then the non-defaulting party may, at its sole option, 
may terminate this Lease upon fifteen (15) days prior written notice to the defaulting party. 

In addition to the termination rights above, each party may terminate this Lease upon 
thirty(30) days prior written notice to the other party. 

10. Notices.  Any notice required or permitted by this Lease to be given by mail shall be sent to 
the following addresses; 

Tenant’s Address: 137 Highlands Dr, Lebanon, Virginia 24266 

Landlord’s Address: 140 Hilltop Ave, Lebanon, Virginia 24266 



11. Entire Agreement.  This Lease contains the entire agreement between Landlord and Tenant 
regarding the Property and supersedes all previous agreement between Landlord and 
Tenant.  This Lease may be modified only by an agreement in writing signed by Landlord and 
Tenant. 

Landlord and Tenant have executed this Lease to be effective as of the date stated in the 
first paragraph of this Lease. 

Tenant      Landlord 

 

Russell County Board of Supervisors   Highland Properties, LLC 

By: ____________________________  By: ____________________________ 

Name: _________________________  Name: _________________________ 

Title: ___________________________  Title: __________________________ 

 



ACCOUNTS PAYABLE SPECIALIST 
 

• Proficiency in Microsoft Excel and Word 

• Maintain AP filing system 

• Maintain petty cash 

• Pay vendors and service providers 

• Schedule and prepare checks  

• Reconcile statements and payment records 

• Ensure payment credits are applied correctly 

• Post payments to the General Ledger 

• Enter budget figures  

• Correspond with vendors regarding billing and payments 

• Prepare reports for Board of Supervisors/County 
Administrator and County offices 

• Assist with audits 

• Maintain 1099 records and reports 

• Provide administrative, financial and clerical support  

• Other duties as assigned by the County Administrator 

• High School Diploma and/or Associates Degree in Accounting or 
related field 

•  4+ years’ experience accounts payable/general ledger system 
procedures and financial chart of accounts 

• Ability to work independently, multi-task as needed  

• Knowledge of the Bright Accounting System preferred  







Russell County BOS 
VDOT Update 
March 7, 2022 
 
Board Action Requests 
 
No Board action requested. 
 
Snow Removal 

 

Area Headquarter crews in conjunction with contractors were engaged in snow removal 

activities on over a dozen days for multiple snowfall events through the month. 

 
Maintenance Activities – Completed / Underway 
 
Maintenance crews are actively involved in a variety of activities, including: 
 

• Replacement of twin 60” culverts on Route 634 (Pine Creek) was initiated on January 31st. 
This work has been completed.  
 

• Brush cutting was completed on segment(s) of Routes 633 (Clarks Valley Road) and Route 
670 (Mill Creek). 
 

• Limited pothole patching was completed on various routes including 640 (River Mtn Road), 
740 (Copper Ridge) 678 (Copper Creek), 662 (Spring City Road), 645 (New Garden), 615 
(Gravel Lick), 19 and 71. 
 

• Maintenance work of some type (spreading gravel, blading) was conducted on over three 
dozen gravel roads.  

 

• Pipes were open on Routes 624 (Drill Road), 609 (High Point Road) and 640 (River Mtn 
Road).  

 

• Ditching was completed on portions of Routes 600 (Gravel Lick Road), 615 (Gravel Lick), 
634 (Pine Creek), 635 (Horton Ridge), 714 (Franks Hollow), 755 (Chiggersville Circle), 67 
and 71. 
 

Maintenance Activities - Planned 
 

• Pipe replacement on Route 621 (Sandy Ridge).  Due to the road width and depth of the 
pipe, the road will be closed on March 2nd and 3rd. VDOT staff have coordinated this closure 
with the nearby mining operation. 

 

• Ditching and grading on Route 645 
 

• Culvert replacement & associated ditching on Route 730 (Requires permit) 
 

• Ditching on Routes 740 & 645 
 



• Boom ax work along Routes 661 and 615 
 
Non – VDOT Projects 
 
Pure Salmon Project 
 
No new information to report this month.   
 
St Paul Welcome Center 
 
The residency received updated plans on February 25th and staff are coordinating the review with 
various departments. We understand this submittal was not intended to be a final submittal, but an 
opportunity for VDOT to provide comments prior to final plan preparation, which we appreciate.  
 
Rural Rustic / 6 Year Plan Projects 
 
Tumbez Hollow Rural Rustic (Drainage)  
 
4 drain pipes crossing under the road and entrance pipes at drive ways will be installed next 
spring. The major drainage work has been completed and a portion of the elevation of a portion of 
the road has been raised. The balance of the funding will become available in July.  
 
Staff is monitoring the performance of the drainage improvements through the spring and should 
adjustments be needed to the drainage, the adjustments will be completed prior to paving 
operations.  
 
Thomas Warner Rural Rustic Project 
 
Work up to the point of placing the stone base for asphalt is complete.  
 
Future 6 Year Plan Projects 
 
Blanch Davis Road (Route 606) is the next project on the 6 year plan list and receives funding in 
July 2023.  Please note, we will begin looking at updating the 6 year plan probably in March with a 
target of passing the requisite resolution and adopting the plan at the April or May Board meeting. 
The residency anticipates learning the County’s allocation by early March.  
 
 
Miscellaneous 
 
Residency staff stand ready to respond to inquiries and provide explanations but also offer the 1-
800-FOR-ROAD call to enter work order requests into VDOT’s tracking system. 
































































































































































	Acknowledgement.pdf
	Meeting: 3/7/22      6:00 PM
	Staff Recommendation:
	Suggested Motion:

	Presentations.pdf
	Meeting: 3/7/22      6:00 PM
	Staff Recommendation:
	Suggested Motion:

	Public Hearing.pdf
	Meeting: 3/7/22     6:00 PM
	Staff Recommendation:
	Suggested Motion:

	Authorization - Minutes BOS.pdf
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):

	Authorization - Expenditures.pdf
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):

	Presentations - Attorney.pdf
	Meeting: 3/7/22         6:00 PM
	Staff Recommendation:
	Suggested Motion:

	Reports1.pdf
	Meeting: 3/7/22         6:00 PM
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):
	ATTACHMENTS:

	2021 Redistricting Ordinance - DRAFT.pdf
	ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ORDINANCE OF RUSSELL COUNTY- ELECTION
	\DISTRICT AND PRECINCT BOUNDARIES




